## COMPUTER SIMULATION OF A POROUS MEDIA COMBUSTOR FOR SOLID FUEL UTILIZATION



A DISSERTATION SUBMITTED IN PARTIAL FULLFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DEGREE OF DOCTOR OF ENGINEERING PROGRAM IN ENERGY AND MATERIALS ENGINEERING (INTERNATIONAL PROGRAM) FACULTY OF ENGINEERING RAJAMANGALA UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY THANYABURI ACADEMIC YEAR 2020 COPYRIGHT OF RAJAMANGALA UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY THANYABURI

## COMPUTER SIMULATION OF A POROUS MEDIA COMBUSTOR FOR SOLID FUEL UTILIZATION



A DISSERTATION SUBMITTED IN PARTIAL FOLLFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DEGREE OF DOCTOR OF ENGINEERING PROGRAM IN ENERGY AND MATERIALS ENGINEERING (INTERNATIONAL PROGRAM) FACULTY OF ENGINEERING RAJAMANGALA UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY THANYABURI ACADEMIC YEAR 2020 COPYRIGHT OF RAJAMANGALA UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY THANYABURI

Dissertation Title	Computer Simulation of a Porous Media Combustor for		
and the second second	Solid Fuel Utilization		
Name-Surname Mr.Buncha Puttakoon			
Program	Energy and Materials Engineering		
<b>Dissertation Advisor</b>	Assistant Professor Boonrit Prasartkaew, D.Eng.		
Academic Year	2020		

#### **DISSERTATION COMMITTEE**

Chairman

(Assistant Professor Panu Pratumnopharat, Ph.D.)

Committee

(Assistant Professor Kitipong Jaojaruek, D.Eng.)

Committee

(Assistant Professor Kiattisak Sangpradit, Ph.D.)

Mina: Ch (Mr. Winai Chanpeng, D.Eng.)

Committee

Committee

(Assistant Professor Boonrit Prasartkaew, D.Eng.)

Bount P.

Approved by the Faculty of Engineering, Rajamangala University of Technology Thanyaburi in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirement for the Degree of Doctor of Engineering

> (Assistant Professor Sivakorn Angthong, Ph.D.) June 12, 2020

<b>Dissertation Title</b>	Computer Simulation of a Porous Media Combuston		
	for Solid Fuel Utilization		
Name-Surname	Mr. Buncha Puttakoon		
Program	Energy and Materials Engineering		
<b>Dissertation Advisor</b>	Assistant Professor Boonrit Prasartkaew, D.Eng.		
Academic Year	2020		

#### ABSTRACT

The fossil fuel combustion scheme causes not only energy resources depletion, but also results in global warming and climate change issues. This study investigated a performance combustion system by applying the concept of porous media technology using waste stainless steel nuts and by using wood charcoal as solid fuel.

The experimental setup was done for two main cases: with porous media (case II) and without (case I) the porous media. The setup with the porous media was further configured according to sizes: 8 mm (case II-A), 10 mm (case II-B), and 12 mm (case II-C). The collected data were used to determine the setup with the highest heat transfer efficiency to the water tubes during combustion thereby giving a higher calorific value to the system and then comparing it to a nonporous kiln. Based on the results, porous media encourages higher heat transfer efficiency as observed from the rise in the temperature of water at the heat exchange chamber during the experiment. Porous media induces both the occurrence of conduction and convection heat transfer to water tubes resulting to higher heating temperatures as compared to the one without porous media.

The simulation solid fuel porous media combustor (SFPMC) system was applied by the computer with ANSYS software. The experimental study was conducted in two important cases: without porous media and with porous media using three sizes of stainless steel nuts (8, 10, and 12 mm). It was found that the results obtained by computer simulations in all cases were consistent with the heat radiation combustion theory of porous media. And it was consistent with the study results from the experiment. From a comparative study of solid fuel combustion combustor with and without porous media installed, it was found that the combustors with installed porous media demonstrated higher heat transfer efficiency than combustors without installed porous media. Furthermore, the effect of using varying sizes of porous media was explored by using 8, 10, and 12 mm. stainless steel nuts in the study. With the porous media technique, the 10 mm size stainless steel nuts with a porosity of 0.53 greatly improved the performance of the proposed solid fuel porous media combustor (SFPMC) system. At steady state combustion conditions, a maximum average combustion temperature reached 1,002  $^{\circ}$  and an average thermal efficiency of 67 %, was obtained.

Keywords: computer simulation, porous media, solid fuel, combustion

#### Acknowledgements

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to my thesis advisor Assistant Professor Dr. Boonrit Prasartkaew for the valuable guidance and encouragement which helped me all the time throughout my research.

I would like to thank to the thesis committees: Assistant Professor Dr. Kitipong Jaojaruek, Assistant Professor Dr. Panu Prathumnopharat, Assistant Professor Dr. Kiattisak Saengpraditand, Dr. Winai Chanpeng for their valuable comments and helpful suggestions, which provided me with tremendous assistance and motivation to think carefully on the research ideas and methodology throughout the dissertation duration process. Furthermore, I thank Rajamangala University of Technology Thanyaburi and Rajamangala University of Technology Suvarnabhumi for the tremendous financial support and flexibility during my several previous years of my education.

I am most thankful for my family who always support and encourage me in every endeavor in my life. Without their love patience and encouragement, I would not be who I am today.



## **Table of Contents**

Abstract
Acknowledgements
Table of Contents
List of Table
List of Figures. (8)
List of Abbreviation. (11)
CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION.
1.1 World Energy Outlook 12
1.2 Statement of the Problem
1.3 Objectives of the Study
1.4 Scope and Limitation of Study 14
1.5 Expected Results
CHAPTER 2 REVIEW AND THE LITERATURE
2.1 Combustion Theory 15
2.2 Biomass Energy
2.3 Charcoal
2.4 Types of Combustor
2.5 Heating Value
2.6 Modeling Techniques
2.7 Combustion of Solid Fuels
2.8 Porous Medium Combustion
2.9 Basic Principles of Porous Medium Combustor
2.10 Porous Medium Combustor
2.11 Ceramic Materials Employed in the Porous Medium Technique 40
2.12 Energy and Energy Resorts
2.13 Mathematical of Combustion
2.14 Mathematical Formulation
2.15 Literature Review
CHAPTER 3 RESEARCH METHODOLOGY
3.1 Experimental and Methods
3.2 Simulation Geometry and Design as Experimental
3.3 Governing Equations
3.4 Meshing
3.5 Simulation Setup
CHAPTER 4 RESEARCH RESULT
4.1 Experimental
4.2 Simulation
4.3 Results Simulation Validation
4.4 CFD Simulation of hot gas temperature profiles in porous media
chambers. (After fixing the gas heat transfer channel from 1 hole
as 5 holes)

## Table of Contents (Continued)

CHAPTER 5 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS	93
5.1 Conclusion	93
5.2 Recommendations	94
List of Bibliography	95
Appendices	101
Appendices A List of Publications	102
Biography	139



## List of Tables

## Page

Table	2.1	General characteristics of petroleum products	18
Table	2.2	Most important material data for Al2O <sub>3</sub> , SiC and ZrO <sub>2</sub>	42
Table	3.1	The cases observed during the experiment for the proposed	
		SFPMC with water heating system	64
Table	4.1	Comparison of experiment results to simulation results	89



## List of Figures

## Page

Figure	2.1	Gas rigs in the US Gulf of Mexico.[63]	18
Figure	2.2	Oil refining process [63]	20
Figure	2.3	Composition of biomass or general matter	23
Figure	2.4	Schematic of an updraft gasifier with steam and air as a	
		gasification agent [74]	27
Figure	2.5	Schematic of a throated-type downdraft gasifier [74]	28
Figure	2.6	Schematic of a cross-draft gasifier [74]	28
Figure	2.7	Coal combustion systems: (a) pulverized coal burner; (b) cyclone	
C		burner;(c) spreader stoker; (d) fluidized-bed combustor. [7]	35
Figure	2.8	Schematic setup of a porous-medium [14]	37
Figure	2.9	Porous-medium stabilization principle [14]	37
Figure	2.10	Schematic diagram of the combustor with two porous regions [14]	38
Figure	2.11	Typical emission values of a porous-medium burner compared	
0		with international norms [14]	38
Figure	2 1 2	Measured NO <sub>2</sub> concentrations in flue gases for low-power-	
I Iguit	2.12	operation for different coronic Materials [14]	39
г.	0.10	$\mathcal{D}$	57
Figure	2.13	Al2O2 films structures (a) = incoming form static minor (d) Fo	
		A12O3 fibre structure; (c) Zirconium Ioam static mixer; (d) Fe-	20
Figura	2 14	Commonly used percus coronic materials [16]	39 41
Figure	2.14	Schematic of a fixed had furnace with a maying grate [24]	41
Figure	2.15	Schematic diagram of a porous material Adapted from [20]	45
Figure	2.10	Schematic of different reaction zones (for a spherical particle)	40
I Iguie	2.17	Zone I – reaction limited Zone II – reaction and diffusion	
		limited Zone III (IV) – diffusion limited Adapted from [20]	47
Figure	2.18	Schematic of fixed-bed furnace [34]	49
Figure	2.19	Eulerian – Eulerian approach [34]	50
Figure	2.20	Eulerian-Lagrangian approach [34]	50
Figure	2.21	Neighbouring layer approach [34]	51
Figure	2.22	Cascading reactor model [34]	51
Figure	2.23	Steady-state ignition rate for different air flow rates after 900 s	
		[52]	53
Figure	2.24	Physical configuration of the model [52]	54
Figure	2.25	Distribution of the error between simulation and measurement	
		results [5]	56
Figure	2.26	Effect of the equivalence ratio on the combustion wave velocity	
		for different air flow rates and pellet diameters [6]	57
Figure	2.27	Compilation of the adiabatic temperature and the peak	_
		temperature in the burner [6]	57

## List of Figures (Continued)

Figure	3.1	Solid fuel porous media combustor (SFPMC)	58
Figure	3.2	Temperature measurement points	59
Figure	3.3	Porous media chamber	60
Figure	3.4	Combustion chamber and through three drilled holes with a size	
		of 12 mm	60
Figure	3.5	The water circulation pump system	60
Figure	3.6	Air blowing system	61
Figure	3.7	Multi-channel logger	61
Figure	3.8	Temperature measurement points	62
Figure	3.9	Wood charcoal used in the study	62
Figure	3.10	Porous media used in this study	63
Figure	3.11	Heat exchange of without porous media	65
Figure	3.12	Heat exchange of with porous media	65
Figure	3.13	Model of the porous media chamber used in the simulation	67
Figure	3.14	Write the image in the program according to the actual	
		Combustor	69
Figure	3.15	Comparison of experiments and Mathematical Model	69
Figure	3.16	Components to be analyzed	70
Figure	3.17	The work model is divided into 2 parts	70
Figure	3.18	Domain of water, air and water pipes	71
Figure	3.19	Image for all three domains	71
Figure	3.20	The name all surfaces in order	72
Figure	3.21	The setup boundary	72
Figure	3.22	Set the gas inlet, outlet and water inlet, outlet	73
Figure	3.23	The surface that is calculated in symmetry	73
Figure	3.24	View of the mesh from the outside of the gas	74
Figure	3.25	View of the mesh from the outside of the plate	74
Figure	3.26	View of the mesh from the outside of the water	75
Figure	3.27	View of the mesh from nut	75
Figure	3.28	View of the mesh from the outside of the porous media chamber	75
Figure	4.1	Temperature profile of product gas at the outlet point with and	
		without the porous media	77
Figure	4.2	The gas temperature at different points for the four experimental	
		cases	78
Figure	4.3	The average gas temperature taken at the inlet and outlet points	
		of the four cases at steady state condition	79
Figure	4.4	The difference of the average inlet and outlet temperatures of the	
		gas and water for the four cases	80
Figure	4.5	The absorbed useful heat rate of the four cases (Without*PM,	
		8mm PM, 10mm PM, and 12mm PM)	80

## List of Figures (Continued)

## Page

4.6	The thermal efficiency of the SFPMC system	81
4.7	The balance of energy heat	81
4.8	Conversion result of gas momentum	82
4.9	Conversion result of gas momentum	82
4.10	Velocity vector of hot gas	83
4.11	Temperature volume Rendering Gas	83
4.12	The Velocity vector of water	84
4.13	Temperature volume Water	85
4.14	Comparison of experiment temperature water to the computer	
	Simulation	86
4.15	Comparison of experiment temperature hot gas to the computer	
	Simulation	87
4.16	Temperature volume rendering gas.	90
4.17	Temperature volume water.	90
4.18	Comparison of heat transfer channel from 1 hole as 5 holes.	91
4.19	The thermal efficiency of the SFPMC system.(After fixing the gas	
	heat transfer channel from 1 hole as 5 holes)	92
	4.6 4.7 4.8 4.9 4.10 4.11 4.12 4.13 4.14 4.15 4.16 4.17 4.18 4.19	<ul> <li>4.6 The thermal efficiency of the SFPMC system.</li> <li>4.7 The balance of energy heat.</li> <li>4.8 Conversion result of gas momentum.</li> <li>4.9 Conversion result of gas momentum.</li> <li>4.10 Velocity vector of hot gas.</li> <li>4.11 Temperature volume Rendering Gas.</li> <li>4.12 The Velocity vector of water.</li> <li>4.13 Temperature volume Water.</li> <li>4.14 Comparison of experiment temperature water to the computer Simulation.</li> <li>4.15 Comparison of experiment temperature hot gas to the computer Simulation.</li> <li>4.16 Temperature volume rendering gas.</li> <li>4.17 Temperature volume water.</li> <li>4.18 Comparison of heat transfer channel from 1 hole as 5 holes.</li> <li>4.19 The thermal efficiency of the SFPMC system.(After fixing the gas heat transfer channel from 1 hole as 5 holes)</li> </ul>



### List of Abbreviation

#### NOMENCLATURE

LHV fuel	=	Lower heating value of fuel			
PM	=	porous media			
SFPMC	=	Solid fuel porous media combustor			
T <sub>w,o</sub>	=	Outlet water temperature			
T <sub>w,i</sub>	=	Inlet water temperature			
T <sub>gas,in</sub>	=	Inlet gas temperature			
T <sub>gas.out</sub>	=	Outlet gas temperature			
Without*PM	=	Without porous media			
w/o	=	Without porous media			
Win	=	Water in			
Wout	=	Water out			
m <sub>fuel</sub>	=	Fuel consumption rate			
$\Delta H_{im, water}$	=	Heat transfer improvement of water			
$\Delta H_{im,gas}$	=	Heat transfer improvement of gas			
$\dot{\mathbf{O}}_{\mathbf{T}}$ = The rate of heat transferred to hot gas with porous					
-Birbi		media			
Q <sub>E.W/0</sub>	=	The rate of heat transferred to hot gas without porous			
-8,070		media			
Vt	=	Total amount of water in the container			
$V_s$		= Total amount of water combined with porous media			
C <sub>P</sub>		Specific heat			
Q <sub>u</sub>	XOX	The rate of heat transferred to hot water			
m <sub>w</sub>	PZ	Water flow rate			
<b>^</b>	2=	The rate of heat transferred to hot water with porous			
Water,PM		media			
0	131	The rate of heat transferred to hot water without			
≪water,w/o		porous media			
		2.112400.511 8			
GREEK SYN	MBOLS	NEL SE			
		~~~nina\$5~~			
		The addition was a first water was denotion bill maning			

η <sub>SFPMC</sub>	=	The efficiency of hot water production kiln using solid fuel for unidirectional gas flow
η <sub>im</sub>	=	The improvement in terms of efficiency
3	=	Porosity of porous media

### CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION

#### **1.1 World Energy Outlook**

Energy seems to be the most important factor for human survival; for all human activities depend on energy. Most of the energy resources consumed by countries around the globe are fossil-based wherein its combustion is the primary energy consumption of about 90% in all countries [1]-[2]. Its excessive use caused a growing concern of its supplies depleting soon and of polluting the environment. With fossil fuels as the primary energy resource, it is a compelling issue to know the most effective way of utilizing it. This is due to the increasingly significant demand for an eco-friendly energy management and for various efficient schemes to be implemented in industrial and commercial purposes [3]. Porous media has been used in various combustion applications and it has gained more attention from researchers in the applications such as biomass combustion, incineration of solid waste, catalytic combustion, coal gasification, in situ combustion for the recovery of oil, diesel engine and pollution control, hydrogen production, grounds polluted by toxic organic shedding recuperation, destruction of volatile organic compounds (VOC) in air [4]. Over the past few decades, the porous media combustion (PMC) has been one of the most wellknown technologies to increase the system efficiency and reduce emitted pollutants, and one of the best techniques widely used for an energy efficient combustor. Regarding this technique, Yumlu [3] has presented the experimental study on the performance of a porous flat flame burner. Past studies focused on heat extraction, hydrogen-oxygen and hydrogen-air flames. Various types of researches attempted to improve the performance of PMC over the years, which can be categorized into the phase of fuels used: gaseous, liquid and solid fuels. Most studies focused on gaseous fuel, liquid fuel, and porous combustor as presented in [5]-[12]. Kaplan and Hall studied the characteristics of liquid fuel combustion by spraying n-Heptane into Porous media in the up-flow direction to fuel the experiment. Another one was done by Takami et al. proposing a new fuel combustion technique. It was done by dripping kerosene onto the porous layer instead of spraying the objective. From the result of the said research, it has been successful in applying liquid fuel drops on porous media to burn liquid fuels instead of spraying [14].

The PMC technique has been studied and applied to steady combustion with great success for the past decades of research. This technique was used for both gaseous liquid fuels and solid fuels (coal) and the effect of the combustion feature of such technology is its distinctive performance. Earlier studies of many researchers, focused on both experimentally and theoretical developments of reactors for gas and liquid. [16]-[27] But in order to address the environmental problems of fossil fuel utilization, renewable-energy based systems should be encouraged as well as the development of new combustion techniques. Therefore, new renewable energy or

biomass energy sources must be explored to remedy this crisis and environmental problems for the near future [12]. Industries produce a lot of waste materials that can be a potential source of renewable energy. One common source is in the form of firewood that is usually used in rural households. However, when burnt it produces smoke and has low heating value. By converting the firewood into charcoal, its disadvantages are resolved. The charcoal obtained will approximately contain 50% of the wood burnt which still varies depending on the process. Nowadays, due to the progress in using wood as energy, it can now be used to directly produce gas that can run engines successfully [28]. Studies also showed several advantages of renewable energy systems such as its safer operation, worldwide availability, contribution to a clean environment, and production of non-polluting energy [16]-[17]. However, there are still a lack in studies about the application of porous media in solid combustor.

The research is a comparative study of hot water production with combustor solid fuel combustor (wood charcoal) with and without the porous media and compare the results of the experiment with the computer simulation, to reveal the effect of porous media and to compare the heat transfer to the water pipe between the presence and absence of medium. The porous fill in the tube of the chamber. The expected result in the porous media is a kind of material with connected voids, where hot gas can easily penetrate through the medium. Porous media will cause the circulation of hot gas to the porous media by conduction and effective heat radiation. Solid fuel Combustor have been developed using a computer simulation. And to guide the development Combustor Solid fuel in the future.

#### **1.2 Statement of the Problem**

To mitigate the aforesaid serious problems, is not only to focus on energy preservation and energy efficiency measures but renewable energy utilization should also be encouraged. This work introduces a novel method to improve the performance of solid fuel/feedstock combustor using the porous media technology. The objective of this research is to examine the performance of the solid fuel porous media combustor (SFPMC) from the reasons and background above. Here are some research questions that will be addressed by this study:

1.2.1 Can the computer simulation in this study predict the proposed system performance?

1.2.2 Can the SFPMC system perform effectively for the solid fuel/feedstock utilization?

1.2.3 Can the reliability of the SFPMC system be improved to obtain higher efficiency?

#### **1.3 Objectives of the Study**

This research aims at proposing a new concept of a SFPMC system and presenting the investigation on the performance and feasibility of this high efficiency reactor. The specific objectives of this study are as follows:

1.3.1 To study experimentally on the performance of the SFPMC system.

1.3.2 To simulate SFPMC system by computer.

1.3.3 To study the efficiency of the SFPMC system by a comparative study with a computer simulation.

#### **1.4 Scope and Limitation of Study**

The research includes theoretical experimental studies and computer simulation. The scope and limitations of the study are as follows:

Objective 1: To simulation SFPMC system by computer. ANSYS Software. Finally, the results from this simulation was validated by the available experimental data.

Objective 2: For simulation, the input data of solid feedstock was obtained from the literatures.

Objective 3: The experimental study will be conducted in two important cases:

1) Without porous media,

2) With porous media using 3 sizes of nuts: 8 mm., 10 mm., 12 mm.

#### **1.5 Expected Resulted**

1.5.1 The proposed SFPMC have been developed using a computer simulation.

1.5.2 To guide the development solid fuel combustor in the future.



#### CHAPTER 2 THORETICAL AND LITERATURE REVIEW

Porous media have received a lot of attention from researchers, due to the heat transfer technology using porous media. There are advantages that can be applied to the system that has good heat transfer. Past studies have found that using porous media made from a variety of materials. Most of the fuel used is fossil fuel, which is gas fuel and liquid fuel. The design of the experiment equipment is also different to suit the type of fuel. This research is the application of porous material technology for use with combustor of solid fuels (wood charcoal) to study heat transfer and heat radiation with porous media, compared to the with-out porous media and the actual experimental results with those obtained from the computer simulation in order to improve the combustor performance.

#### **2.1 Combustion theory**

Combustion is a chemical reaction. Where the combustible material reacts and oxygen with release heat at the same time, it will turn into oxide compounds or burned products with complete fuel burn including carbon dioxide and water. Incomplete combustion leads to wastage. These fuel wastes cause air pollution. Therefore, knowing the principles of the combustion process and the method of complete combustion control is required. It is of great importance to energy conservation and environmental protection. The different forms of heating systems and devices along with guidelines for prevention will help make improvements to the overall system of thermal energy efficiency. Heat is one of the most important energy, used in various industrial production processes. Typically, heat energy is obtained by combustion of fuel in the presence of sufficient oxygen and temperature. Heat conduction in various industries for maximum efficiency depends on two important components: combustion and heat conduction. Combustion is an element that has a great effect on heat conduction, because if the combustion is incomplete, it means that some of the fuel is left without combustion. Complete combustion is exhausting the used fuel. Thermal conductivity in industrial applications can use the heat generated by the direct combustion of fuel for heaters. Direct or indirect, there is a medium to induce heat to the machine such as steam, hot water, hot oil and hot air, etc. Therefore, the goal of the highest efficiency in terms of thermal conductivity is the ability to conduct heat arising from combustion used to maximize benefit.

Fuel refers to a substance that can be easily burned when reacting with air or oxygen. And heat arising from combustion, can be used economically, so what is used as fuel. It needs to be able to produce a lot. They can be easily supplied, stored, transported and used. In addition, the substances produced by combustion (as exhaust, ash, etc.) must not cause environmental pollution such as air, water, etc. Fuels can be categorized according to physical conditions; as gas fuel, liquid fuel and solid fuel.

#### 2.1.1 Gas fuel

Gaseous fuels are fuels that are in a gaseous state under normal temperature and pressure. Divided into natural gas which are naturally occurring and gases produced by separating solid or other liquid fuels.

### Gas fuel properties Advantages

1. Compared to solid fuels and liquid fuels Although the amount of excess air is still small, it can be completely burned more easily. Burns is stable. Have high combustion efficiency.

2. In addition to preheating the combustion air, it can also warm up the fuel. Own as well, so even if the fuel has a relatively low heat value, it can burn at high temperatures.

3. The combustion level can be conveniently adjusted with an adjusting valve, so it can be easily ignited and extinguished. And can adjust the ratio between fuel and air as desired as well as being able to use the system automatic control temperature control system provides local heat or evenly distributed heat. Or adjust the atmosphere inside the kiln easily as well.

4. There is no ashes in the fuel.

5. It contains very little sulfur. Therefore, does not cause air pollution as sulfur

dioxide

#### Disadvantage

1.Compared with the same heat, it requires more volume than any other fuel. Therefore, inconvenient to transport

2. Gas storage requires a gas cylinder. Therefore, having high construction costs.

3. The cost is more expensive than liquid fuel.

4. Safety controls must be strictly controlled because there is a danger of leakage and explosion.

#### Gas fuel type

#### 1. Natural gas

It is a naturally occurring gas fuel. It is primarily hydrocarbon compounds. Have both gas from oil wells, which are gases that are formed with oil and gas obtained from gas wells which do not have oil. It can be divided into dry gas and moist gas. For dry gas, it contains methane (CH<sub>4</sub>) as an element of not less than 95%. Moist gas, in addition to methane, ethane (C<sub>2</sub>H<sub>6</sub>), also contains hydrocarbons with carbon atoms ranging from propane to (C<sub>3</sub>H<sub>8</sub>) and above are elements natural gas has a high calorific value (36-48 MJ /m<sup>3</sup><sub>N</sub>) and easily burns. And the exhaust from combustion will produce the least air pollution compared to all fuels. Land transport transports gas along gas pipelines in gas conditions, water transport is transported in liquid condition by inserting tanker vessel, cold storage then transfer it into a gas cylinder above the ground or underground in a typical liquid state. Natural gas that has cooled down to -162 ° C until it becomes liquid is called liquefied natural gas.

#### 2. Gas LPG

Gas LPG refers to gases with a major component of petroleum hydrocarbons which is in the state of gas at normal temperature and pressure but when increasing the pressure or lowering the temperature, it becomes a liquid easily. Generally, mixed gas between propane and butane has a common name called liquefied petroleum gas and are both spontaneous nature in oil wells and as a by-product of crude oil refining gas properties, it has a high heat value and is a clean gas. Convenient in transportation, adjusts the burn level and it burns easily, so it is widely used both in industry and household.

#### 3. Town gas

Liquefied gas is a gas that is transmitted by gas pipelines supplied to factories, buildings and households. Mainly coal but nowadays, the use of natural gas is increasing. Liquefied gas is a clean gas. Has high combustion efficiency and can conveniently adjust the combustion level with volume. Reserve that can be used for a long time. Therefore it qualifies as an ideal fuel. However, there are many types of LPG depending on the raw materials and equipment used. Therefore, it is necessary to use a suitable combustion device for the type of gas.

#### 4. Gas obtained from oil decomposition

Gas obtained from oil decomposition refers to fuel gas obtained from hydrocarbon decomposition. With heat and partial combustion with steam conditioning or by reacting with hydrogen to make it have a smaller molecular size The most commonly used raw materials are: Off-oil from gas refinery gas LPG naphtha Kerosene, heavy oil, etc.

#### 5. Other fuel gases

Coal gas (Gas from coke stove) it is a by-product of coal to be distilled dry (Dry distillation) to produce coke and contains hydrocarbons, hydrogen, carbon monoxide, etc. Hot no more than 22 MJ / Nm<sup>3</sup>. It is used as the fuel of the boiler and as a raw material for making cooking gas (Town gas) etc. Gas from blast furnace is the gas that is obtained from the top of the stove in the process of producing steel, it is called gas blast furnace or B gas (Blast furnace gas). It is a gas that is the main component of carbon monoxide, flammable and has a calorific value not more than 3.8 MJ/ Nm<sup>3</sup>. It is a waste gas from oil refineries (off gas), a gas released from various oil refining processes in a refinery. The composition will depend on the type of machine,

characteristics of crude oil operating conditions, etc. will have hydrocarbons such as C<sub>3</sub>, C<sub>4</sub>, etc. are abundant.



Figure 2.1 Gas rigs in the US Gulf of Mexico.[63]

#### 2.1.2 Liquid fuel

Liquid fuel refers to fuel that is in a liquid state under normal temperature and pressure. Almost all liquids in use today are petroleum fuels. Liquid fuel production will bring mined crude oil. Obtained from oil wells to separate and decompose (Catalyst decomposition, decomposition by reaction with hydrogen, etc.) to transform it into a petroleum product suitable for each purpose of use category.

Tuble all Contrat characteribiles of performin products.					
Fuel	Main	Boiling	High heat	Objective Main use	
	component	point range	value		
Gasoline	С, Н	30-210	46.1	Gasoline engine	
Kerosene	С, Н	160-300	46.0	Small engines for agriculture	
Light oil	С, Н	160-360	41.9	Small diesel engine	
Heavy oil	C, H (O, S)	250-360	42.8-46.5	Boiler, industrial furnace	
				Large diesel engine	

Table 2.1 General characteristics of petroleum products.

### Liquid fuel properties Advantages

1. A high calorific value

- 2. Cheap price per unit of heat cost
- 3. Convenient storage and transportation Rarely deteriorates during storage

4. High combustion efficiency

5. Less ash

6. Easy to burn, easy to use automatic control system.

#### Disadvantage

1. High combustion temperature It produces heat at some point that can be easily too high.

2. Heavy oils contain a lot of sulfur can be the cause of air pollution easy.

3. Fuel burner Some make noise easily.

#### Types and characteristics of liquid fuels

#### 1. Crude oil

Refers to crude oil extracted from a naturally occurring underground oil well. Crude oil has physical properties. Physics and chemistry differ depending on the source and depth of crude oil. The main components are substances of hydrocarbons, however, common crude oil contains large amounts of paraffin and naphtha hydrocarbons. Sometimes there are large amounts of aromatic hydrocarbons. But crude oil has almost no olefins. Hydrocarbons are included.

#### 2.Gasoline

It is a petroleum product that has the same boiling range as naphtha (30-210 °C) but the ingredients are optimized. In use as a fuel of internal combustion engines therefore separated into a separate type from naphtha. Gasoline is divided into three main categories: automobile gasoline. Gasoline for the essential characteristics of gasoline for a car include knock engine protection. Vaporization easy aircraft and industrial gasoline the essential characteristics of gasoline for a car include knock engine protection. The safety and cleanliness of the knockout engine protection uses the octane value as a measure octane values are divided into ways Research method versus motor method.

#### 3. Kerosene

It is an oil with a burning range of 160-300 °C. In distillation, the fraction sequence is obtained between naphtha and light oil. The density of 0.78-0.80 g/cm<sup>3</sup> has a high calorific value of 46 MJ / kg. It is used as a fuel for heating and cooking such as oil heaters used in small diesel engines, household and used to clean various machinery. Kerosene used in various small engines for agriculture is tea-colored kerosene. Tea-colored kerosene. is a must. It has a certain level of anti-knocking properties, but the smoking point has no problems. Containing high-octane aromatic hydrocarbons.

#### 4. Diesel fuel

It has a burning range of 160-360 °C and is the fuel that is produced between kerosene and heavy oil in the distillation section order. It is mostly used as a fast-speed diesel engine fuel for cars, railway construction machinery or boats and also for hotbulb engines in fishing boats and small engines for agriculture. High speed diesel engine fuel must have good flammability, not too low ignition point, suitable viscosity, low pour point and low sulfur. Cetane is used for flammability.

#### 5. Fuel oil

Generally, fuel oil is a high molecular weight fuel. Obtained by taking the remaining oil from the refining crude oil residual oil from the breakdown and the rest of the oil from the light oil to mix together originally will be divided into but in the JIS standard, the kinetic viscosity is used primarily to divide the heavy oil. It is divided into 3 types: type 1 (fuel oil A), type 2 (fuel B) and type 3 (fuel C). In addition, type 1 fuel oils are classified according to the sulfur content, number 1 and number 2, and type 3 are also subdivided according to the viscosity is No. 1, No. 2 and No. 3. When the nitrogen in the fuel oil burns, Part will become a compound nitrous oxide released out into the atmosphere. Generally, in fuel oil a there is 0.01-0.03% nitrogen [kJ/kg], fuel oil B and C have 0.1- 0.4% [kJ/kg], which is a smaller proportion than sulfur. There are few heavy metal compounds in the fuel oil. These compounds after burning to ashes, the metals available are: iron, silicon, aluminum, calcium, magnesium, sodium, nickel, vanadium, etc. which when burning, will accumulate on the heat transfer surface of the boiler and block the transfer of heat. Vanadium metal burns will react with sodium or others to form compounds with a low melting point, which will corrode heating pipes or other parts of the boiler. Fuel oil is different from coal in that, if the fuel oil has the same density then the heat value is almost equal, however, if it has a high sulfur content, the heat value can be reduced somewhat. Commercially available fuel oil has valuable high heat between 42.8-46.5 MJ/kg.



Figure 2.2 Oil refining process [63].

#### 2.1.3 Solid fuel

Solid fuel refers to fuels that operate in a solid state. The main solid fuels are fuels natural such as coal, lignite, peat, wood, etc., and fuels that are obtained from the burning of natural fuels (Carbonization) such as coke, semi-coke, lignite coke, charcoal, etc.

#### 1. Coal

Coal was formed by a primeval plant, slowly turning into coal with heat and pressure below the earth's surface, so the properties of coal therefore depend on the origin of the plant type of origin, the coal rank deposition conditions and the soil condition.

#### 2. Lignite

Lignite is a type of brown coal. Brown coal is black in appearance. If it is brown, it is called lignite. Lignite has more moisture than coal (approximately 30-50% [kJ/kg]). Easily influenced by climate cracks and breaks easily with the heat value of 12.5-16.7 MJ/kg and low combustion temperature. But when drying it will have a low ignition temperature and it burns well apart from being used in factories and houses in the vicinity of the lignite mine.

#### 3. Coke

It is obtained by using caking coal as the main component for Carbonization at high temperatures approximately 1000 °C. It is mainly used for steel smelting and foundry applications. The main components of coke are carbon, good coke, moisture, volatile matter ash, sulfur and phosphorus etc. is Generally, coke is not widely used, but it is used for heating and cooking. and to dry agricultural crops with hot air. Coke has the advantage of being heated higher than coal and has less smoke and black dust (Soot)

#### 2.2 Biomass energy

#### 2.2.1 Introduction to biomass energy

The biomass energy is a source to collect energy from nature and can be used to produce energy. such as waste from agricultural material or waste from the agricultural industrial production process, such as rice husk obtained by milling rice bagasse bark. It is obtained from the production of granulated sugar, mainly from the processing of rubber or eucalyptus wood and some from the forest palm residue is obtained from the extraction of crude palm oil from fresh palm fruit. Cassava residue is obtained from cassava flour production. Corn cobs are obtained by milling corn. By removing the seeds from the clams and coconut shells, it is obtained from the peeling of the coconut to remove the coconut meat to produce coconut milk and coconut oil. Yeast obtained from the production of alcohol, etc. Biomass can be transformed as energy because at this stage of growth, plants use carbon dioxide and water. Already change energy from sunlight through the process of photosynthesis, starch and sugar are produced and kept in the various parts of the plant. Therefore, when using plants as fuel so we get energy. Biomass energy can be used in the form of heat, steam or electric current production. It will use any type of biomass fuel mentioned above for combination. Therefore, biomass is a cheap fuel source. If it is used in areas not far from the source, there will be too much fuel hence reduce the cost of transportation. There is biomass everywhere in Thailand, and more should be used thus reducing the foreign currency loss in importing fuel and generating income for local people. In addition, the production of energy from biomass fuel with the right technology will not cause pollution and does not create a greenhouse effect. Due to the replacement of plants, this makes the carbon dioxide gas generated and circulating and no additional discharge. We also hope that the development of biomass projects can strengthen and Community participation as well.

#### 2.2.2 Biomass benefits

1. The community economy will thrive because biomass is used as fuel, which can reduce trees. Production capital will help to develop local community industries and will create jobs in that area and generates income for the community through the local tax.

2. Farmers will have additional income increasing because they can sell both agricultural products and agricultural waste that had been scrapped will return to a resale price.

3. As a new alternative fuel that are used to replace fossil fuels in the production of environmentally friendly energy.

4. The stability of the country's energy production will increase due to waste material. There is enough energy from farmers in the country to be used as a substitute for fossil fuels in present.

2.2.3 Biomass composition or general matter is divided into four main components [as shown in Figure 2.3]

1. Moisture refers to the amount of water available. Most biomass has relatively high humidity because it is an agricultural product. If wanting to use biomass as energy by combustion the humidity should not exceed 50 percent.

2. Fixed carbon is a stable part of the molecular structure of biomass. It consists mostly of carbon. Biomass with a low or low constant carbon percentage does not combust well. It has low ignition temperature, slow ignition speed due to high humidity.

3. Volatile Matter is the part where molecules are easily burned, so biomass anything with a high Volatile Matter means that it is easily flammable.

4. And are components. of existing original inorganic materials in the biomass that has been oxidized. The majority of biomass contains 1-3% of ash, except rice husk and straw. There will be about 10-20 percent proportional to the ash garden, which will have burning problems.



Figure 2.3 Composition of biomass or general matter [72].

## 2.2.4 Composition of biomass that affects the production of biomass, each has specific properties.

Some features are considered a disadvantage in bringing biomass used to generate electricity, machinery must be designed to be suitable for that biomass. For the best overall performance, however one of the same properties of biomass is that it is lightweight when compared to other fuels. The production of energy with biomass should be close to Biomass production sources to reduce transportation costs. The best for the specific properties of Biomass that must be considered Including:

- 1. Distribution of biomass sources
- 2. Size
- 3. Humidity
- 4. Adulteration
- 5. The amount of ashes

# 2.2.5 Source of materials that can be used as fuel in Thailand, can be classified into 3 types as follows.

Plant residues or residues after harvesting (crop residue), there are many Left in the farms, forests, factories such as sawdust from rice husk sawmills from rice straw mills, etc.

Weed is a plant that grows naturally through various sources that do not want to give up in the area of cultivation. There are plants that grow in the upland area or in the river, such as water hyacinth, water lettuce, papyrus, etc.

Industrial wastes such as rotten flour from flour factories. Fermented yeast from the liquor factory, etc.

Thailand has agricultural waste such as rice husk, sawdust, rice straw. Various peas, corn cob, weeds. These are organic material that is difficult to decompose but has a heat value high enough to be used for energy benefits. The production is divided into solid fuel rods and bars green fuel, to be used as a substitute fuel, firewood or charcoal, fuel properties of waste materials.

#### 2.3 Charcoal

#### **2.3.1 Introduction to charcoal important energy sources in the earth.**

The best is solar energy. Plants capture solar energy by photosynthesis and store it in different ways such as in the form of wood, which is a form of agricultural produce. In one year, land plants can generate energy in the form of dry mass between 100 - 125 billion tons and water plants generate dry mass. Approximately 44 - 55 billion tons of this amount of biomass is greater than the use of human energy in 200 times the current. Humans know how to use energy from wood by combustion for warmth and cooking. By chance, since prehistoric period humans know how to transform wood into charcoal. For more than 2,000 years, humans have known how to turn charcoal into gas, running engines for more than 70 years, and humans have known how to transform wood into liquefied fuel. More than 35 years, biomass is an energy source that can be created, but the use of biomass is an inconvenient energy. Like any other energy, however, today there is a fuel crisis. As a result, the price of crude oil in the world market continues to rise. Making humans aware of the importance of urgent study and research on the conversion of biomass into various forms of energy.

Classification of energy consumption in Thailand. Can be divided into 5 parts which are mainly.

1. Energy for transport	27	percent
2. Energy for industrial	23	percent
3. Energy for cooking and service	22	percent
4. Energy for agriculture	7	percent
5. Energy for other businesses	21	percent

Most of the transportation and agricultural energy comes from fuels. The energy for cooking and serving is 48% charcoal, 16% firewood, 22% oil and 14% electricity respectively. The wood source used to produce energy is not cheap and wasted. The energy of this fuel wood should be within a radius of 100 km. Usually, the wood that will be used for fuel should be left over from two sources:

1. Residues obtained from horticulture and forestry such as branches, stumps, roots, leaves and bark, etc.

2. Residues from the wood industry. Such as sawmills, plywood factories and paper factories, etc.

In identifying wood from forest plants, it is sufficient to distinguish different parts. 60-65% of the trunk, 5% of the top trunk, 10-15% of the branches, 5-10% of the trunk and 10-20% of the roots should be part of the branches, stumps and small roots. For other parts of wood, it should be used in the wood industry. Any other fuel that is appropriate first and is considered as the final fuel. About stable carbon is an element with high quantity volatile low ash content and has a high heat value. Fuels with high humidity will cause low heat values. And the calorific value of the fuel is classified as an indicator of one of the fuel properties, the high calorific value fuel is considered to be

of good quality fuel, but for the use of charcoal for household cooking, the best quality charcoal is not necessarily a valuable charcoal. Maximum heat, but must have good properties of the charcoal. Other aspects include:

1. An eruption while on fire. The good charcoal will not explode when ignited, or it may and there will be a slight eruption.

2. Weight of charcoal the heavy coals will be burning hot and long.

3. No smoke or strong smell while burning.

4.Have the strength of charcoal. This makes it convenient for use, transportation and storage.

#### 2.3.2 Evolution of charcoal burning method.

This happens according to the different eras of the prosperity that arose if talking about ancient civilizations that existed in the past. From the legacy of this civilization it can be divided into three parts: The middle east, China and the incase. Presently, there is just the middle east and China left, and after that, the era of the middle east and China will reach the civilization of europe. Therefore, the evolution of world charcoal-burning can be divided into.

1. Middle East: Iran, Afghanistan, Pakistan.

2. The era of China, including Korea, Japan.

3. Era of Europe: Europe and the colonies.

#### 2.3.3 Wood Pyrolysis and Charcoal Qualities

Wood contains a large number of different cell groups. The cell wall is made from cellulose. (50%) hemicellulose (20-30%) and lignin (20-30%). All structures are similar in shape to many pipe groups Diameter it is about 4 to 60 microns and has many tiny holes. The pipe walls functions in holding adjacent cells together. The network of structures is complex, both landscape and horizontally. When charcoal is transformed, the cell walls are carbonized and the structure shrinks to approximately one third of their original size. But retains the original shape. Cellulose is the main ingredient in glucose hemicellulose. It contains ingredients from glycoside and lignin, which is a component of aromatic compounds. Therefore, the pyrolysis process is divided into two parts: the first being cellulose and saccharide. The other part is of lignin and hemicellulose which begin pyrolysis at a temperature of about 180 °C and is completed before the temperature reaches 260 °C. Cellulose will pyrolysis very quickly at a temperature of about 275 °C and lignin will begin to pyrolysis when the temperature is about 310 °C and is almost complete at approximately 400 °C and terminated at approximately 500 °C.

#### 2.3.4 Quality of charcoal

The quality of the charcoal depends on two factors. The type of wood used and the carbonization process. In general, hard wood turns into hardwood charcoal and softwood become softwood charcoal. For the duration of the carbonization process, if the carbonization occurs very quickly, the amount of gas from the wood is produced and the charcoal is tough. Less on the other hand, if the carbonization is slow, there will be less gas from wood. Charcoal is stronger, so generally after that, a small air hole is made to control the carbonization. At the same time, the use of new wood this will help the carbonization process progress. And to slowly control the temperature of the carbonization process. This will affect the quality of the charcoal obtained. From carbonization at a temperature of about 400° C, the toughness level is about 5-6, but while using the same wood if the carbonization temperature rises to 700° C, the hardness level of charcoal is about 9 -10.

#### 2.4 Types of Combustor

There have been various designs for gasifier for more than a century may it be small or large scale. The type of gasifier can be classified based on the gasifying agent to be used or according to the source of heat during the process which can be direct or indirect. Generally, it is classified based on the design of the fuel bed and reactor; namely, fixed bed and fluidized bed. Fluidized bed is suitable for large scale coal gasification. Small particles are suspended in an upward flow stream of gas fluid at a velocity enough to enable the particles move like fluid but not too much such that it is carried out of the vessel. The rapid and excellent mixing of particles creates uniformly distributed temperature for gas fluid as it collide with the suspended small particles. Hence, the heat transfer rate is higher as compared to a fixed bed thereby,

providing very high efficiency. For a fixed bed gasifier, there are actually 3 types of design based on the gas flow in the reactor: updraft, downdraft, and horizontal. This is much simpler in design and operation, and causes minimum destruction to the reactor body [Sadaka, 2009].

#### 2.4.1 Updraft Combustor

In an updraft gasifier (Figure 4a), the flow of fuel and gases is countercurrent. The direction of flow of the gasifying agent starts at the bottom of the grate reacting with char from biomass to produce hot gases that will create internal heat exchange as it moves upward. Heat generated pyrolyzes the incoming biomass which is fed on top and then the gas also cools down in the process. The use of combustion heat is effectively used yielding high efficiency. Gases, tar and other volatile compounds ascends at the top of the reactor while ash is removed at the bottom. The disadvantage is the high amount of tar and pyrolysis products because of the chars entrained by the upward flow of the gas. When producer gas is used for heating, the amount of tar does not pose a problem but when used as engine fuel intensive gas cleaning system is required. Slagging is also a huge problem when fluffy, low-density fuels are used.



Figure 2.4 Schematic of an updraft gasifier with steam and air as a gasification agent [74].

#### 2.4.2 Downdraft Combustor

It is very similar to an updraft gasifier but the location of the zones are reversed (see Figure 4b) as the biomass and gasifying agent moves co-currently. Feedstock is fed at the top of whereas the gasifying agent is fed on the sides. Generated energy at the lower zones heats the topmost zone where drying occurs. Thermal degradation of the dried fuel takes place as it descends on the lower zones because of the heat generated from the pyrolysis gas produced due to the devolatilization. As it moves further down, gas produced at the upper zone passes through the high temperature oxidation zone wherein it undergoes further decomposition and wherein tar cracking is favorable. Product gas moves downward leaving at the bottom of the reactor. The main advantage is that it can produce lower amounts of tar. Drawbacks are producer gas leaving at very high temperatures leading to lower gas efficiency and because of the downward movement of gas the quality is reduced as it contains high dust particle and ash. This type of gasifier is used in power productions ranging from 80 – 500 kW [Knoef, 2005].



Figure 2.5 Schematic of a throated-type downdraft gasifier [74].

#### 2.4.3 Cross draft Combustor

This type of gasifier has similar operating characteristics with the downdraft gasifier. The main difference is that the gasifying agent enters at high velocity concentrating from one side near the bottom of the gasifier which then creates very high temperature. The product gas is drawn off on the opposite side producing gas with very low tar content. However, this is only applicable for very small scale application,  $\leq 10$  kW. and requires very high quality coal having very low ash content.



Figure 2.6 Schematic of a cross-draft gasifier [74].

#### 2.5 Heating Value

Heating value defines the amount of energy available in a fuel. The gasifying agent combined with the composition of biomass typically determines the heating value of producer gas. Compared to other fuels, the heating value of biomass is low on a volume basis, because of its low mass density. Heating value is an important property for use in calculations of thermal systems and performance modelling.

Higher heating value (HHV) is defined as the amount of heat released per unit volume or mass. HHV is measured by putting fuel in an environment at an initial temperature of 25°C, then raising the environmental temperature to the point of complete oxidation, and finally cooling the feedstock back to the starting temperature. HHV is equal to the total amount of heat released during this process. HHV is also referred to as gross calorific value because it includes the latent heat of vaporization of water.

The lower heating value (LHV) is the amount of heat released by totally oxidizing a fuel without the latent heat of vaporization of water, assuming that latent heat is not recovered. LHV is also referred to as the net calorific value.

The relationship between HHV and LHV is defined by:

LHV = HHV - 
$$h_g \left( \frac{9H}{100} + \frac{M}{100} \right)$$
 (2.1)

where H is the hydrogen percentage, M is the moisture percentage, and  $h_g$  is the enthalpy difference between gaseous and liquid water at 25°C. HHV and LHV may be expressed on "ar", db moisture-free basis, or daf moisture ash-free basis. (Basu, 2018a)

While experimental methods are the best method for determining the heating values of biomass, empirical correlations exist to estimate heating values when experimental methods are not available. Channiwala et. al developed a formula to determining HHV for materials including biomass, coal, liquid, and gas. [Channiwala & Parikh, 2002]

$$HHV = 349.1C + 1178.3H + 100.5s - 103.4O - 15.1N - 21.2$$
(2.2)

where C, H, S, O, N, and ASH are the fractions of carbon, hydrogen, sulfur, oxygen, nitrogen and ash on a dry bulb basis.

#### 2.6 Modeling Techniques

The efficiency of the combustor depends on the nature of the raw materials, gas heating parameters and the combustor design. Mathematical modeling is a valuable tool used to optimize experimental designs to minimize combustor production costs and build-up time. Modeling is also very useful for sizing combustor, from laboratory models to demonstration or commercial scale models. Past studies, many researchers have performed on the analysis of the effects of heat transmission parameters. Such as moisture content, material composition, air flow The temperature of the gas r and the energy content of the producer gas. The mathematical modeling is based on the law of conservation of energy mass and momentum, while more complex models may consider fluid dynamics and chemical reactions. Mathematical modeling in the combustor is limited to three approaches: Thermodynamic Equilibrium, Kinetic and Neural Networks (ANN) or Computational Fluid Dynamics (CFD) Pathways [Baruah & Baruah, 2014].

#### 2.6.1 Thermodynamic Equilibrium Modeling

In equilibrium modeling for gasification, the composition of product gas is predicted through the assumption that reactants completely mix with each other and react at a steady-state condition. Equilibrium models calculate mass, heat, and energy balances throughout the entire gasifier or in certain sections of the gasifier to determine an approximation of gas output composition. These models can be categorized into stoichiometric and non-stoichiometric methods.

In the stoichiometric method, equilibrium constants are used to define a set of chemical reactions occurring in the reactor. The most important reactions are considered while other reactions are ignored which can result in small errors. In the non-stoichiometric method, reaction mechanisms are not required to solve the problem through the use of the minimization of Gibbs free energy. This method is a bit more complex but advantageous because intricate knowledge of the chemical reactions is not required. It is very suitable for biomass gasification, because the elemental composition of the feedstock is all that is needed to obtain the chemical formula through ultimate analysis. [Ferreira, Monteiro, Brito, & Vilarinho, 2019]

Equilibrium models may be simple, but they can describe different gasification parameters and the composition of producer gas quite accurately. This is particularly true for downdraft gasifiers since they typically operate close to equilibrium conditions. [Baruah & Baruah, 2014] However, the equilibrium approach does have limitations. Since thermodynamic equilibrium is not present during low operation temperatures, the equilibrium approach is not an accurate prediction method for gasifiers in this condition. Nevertheless, the equilibrium approach has been successfully used in modeling the gasification process in downdraft gasifiers in many studies.

#### 2.6.2 Gibbs Free Energy

Gibbs free energy is a non-stoichiometric model often used to determine the composition of gas in a gasifier. It is quite advantageous to use in biomass gasification because the chemical composition need not be known, unlike stoichiometric models, and only the elemental composition of the feedstock is used as an input to determine product gases. At the equilibrium state, the minimization of the total Gibbs free energy

of the reactor is achieved. The principles of Gibbs free energy and how to apply them to a gasifier were reviewed from Jarungthammachote.

$$G^t = \sum_{i=1}^N n_i \,\mu_i \tag{2.3}$$

G<sup>t</sup> represents the total Gibbs free energy, n<sub>i</sub> is the number of moles of *i*, and  $\mu_i$  is the chemical potential of species *i*. The chemical potential is represented by:

$$K_i = \overline{G^*1} + \operatorname{RT} \operatorname{In} \left( \frac{fi}{f_i^*} \right)$$
(2.4)

 $f_i$  represents the fugacity of species *i*. The superscript o represents a standard thermodynamic quantity, representing the standard Gibbs free energy and standard fugacity of species *i* in the above equation.

If the assumption is made that all gases in the gasifier are ideal gases, equation (20) can be reduced to:

$$K_i = \Delta \overline{G_{f,i}^*} + \operatorname{RT} \operatorname{In} (y_i)$$
(2.5)

where  $y_i$  is the mole fraction of species *i* and  $\Delta \overline{G}_{f,i}^{\circ}$  is the standard Gibbs free energy of formation of species *i* which is set to 0 for all elements. Substituting equation (21) into equation (19), a full definition for the minimization of Gibbs free energy of a gasifier can be found:

$$G^{t} = \sum_{i=1}^{N} n_{i} \Delta \overline{G_{f,i}^{*}} + \sum_{i=1}^{N} n_{i} RT \ln\left(\frac{n_{i}}{n_{tot}}\right)$$
(2.6)

The values of  $n_i$  which minimize  $G^t$  must then be found. The standard method to do this is performed with the Lagrange multipliers method. The elemental balance is defined by eq. (23).

$$\sum_{i=1}^{N} a_{ij} n_i = A_j, j = 1, 2, 3, \dots, k$$
(2.7)

Then, Lagrange multipliers must be chosen to for the Lagrangian function (L).

$$L = G^{t} - \sum_{j=1}^{k} \lambda_{j} \left( \sum_{i=1}^{N} a_{ij} n_{i} - Aj \right)$$
(2.8)

The standard Gibbs free energy of each chemical species can be calculated with the standard enthalpy and entropy of formation in the following equation.

$$\Delta \overline{G_{f,l}^{*}} = \Delta \overline{H_{f,l}^{*}} - \Delta \overline{S_{f,l}^{*}}$$
(2.9)

#### 2.6.3 Kinetic Modeling

A kinetic model has the ability to predict temperature and gas composition profiles inside a gasifier. It can also predict overall gasifier performance when certain operating conditions of the gasifier are given as inputs. The kinetic model considers both the hydrodynamics and kinetic reactions inside the reactor which are important if the required residence time for complete conversion is long. Therefore, low operation temperatures tend to be more suitable for relatively low operation temperatures when compared with the equilibrium model. Kinetic models tend to be computationally intensive, and their complexity only increases as more outputs of the model are calculated or desired.

When reaction kinetics are considered inside the gasifier, bed hydrodynamics, mass, and energy balances are used to determine yields of tar, char, and gas at the operating conditions used as inputs. The kinetic model is sensitive to gas-solid mixing in the gasifier, therefore kinetic models can be divided into fixed bed, fluidized bed, and entrained flow categories. On the other hand, hydrodynamics considers parameters from the reactor mixing process. The following models can be developed from reactor hydrodynamics: zero dimensional, one dimensional, two dimensional, and three dimensional.

#### 2.6.4 CFD and ANN Models

Computational Fluid Dynamics (CFD) is a branch of fluid dynamics which analyses fluid flow through the use of numerical analysis and data structures. This type of modelling falls under the finite computation analysis category. Numerical computation is performed through the use of computers which allows CFD to solve some of the world's most incredibly complex problems. These problems include aerodynamics, combustion analysis, industrial system design, weather analysis, and engine analysis. CFD analysis begins by defining the physical geometry of a structure using computer aided design (CAD). The volume of the fluid to be analysed is then divided into discrete cells comprised of elements and nodes, also called meshing. Meshing must be fine enough to capture the areas of fluid flow of interest in sufficient detail required for the experiment. Then, the physical modelling is defined by the experimental parameters being measured: equations of fluid motion, radiation, enthalpy, conservation, etc. Those equations will be calculated at the nodes defined in the meshing process. Then, boundary conditions are defined at the surfaces of the fluid domain. Finally, the simulation begins and equations are solved iteratively as steadystate or transient flow, which is defined by the user. The results of the calculations are post-processed after the calculation with post-processing software.

Computational Fluid Dynamics CFD models solve equations for conservation of mass, energy, momentum, and species simultaneously inside specific regions of the gasifier or throughout the gasifier. They incorporate both kinetic and equilibrium modeling to yield the advantages of both models. For gasifiers, CFD models predict

temperature and gas yield very accurately when gasification hydrodynamics is known and used as an input. It combines specific chemistry, chemical reactions, and particulate flow within the gasifier. This is challenging and computation heavy in CFD because of the complexities involved. CFD models have been used with increasing frequency to study the performance of different gasifiers with varying parameters, feedstock, and design specifications. [Baruah & Baruah, 2014]

Meshing is a process used in CFD models to split a structure into smaller components in order to calculate parameters of a structure with greater accuracy. In meshing, you create a finite number of grid points within a structure called nodes. At these nodes, governing equations are solved numerically for the parameters desired. The governing equations solved at the nodes in the models used in this paper are described in detail in section 1.2 of Methods of Experimentation. The Finite Volume Method is used to solve these equations. The greater the density of the meshing, the greater the accuracy in solving the problems. However, greater accuracy comes at the cost of greater difficulty in solving the equations. Therefore, meshes must be created in a balance with enough density to capture the most important details, but with a low enough density where the software is able to solve the equations in a timely manner.

CFD is a useful tool in optimizing material usage, design parameters, experimental procedures, and time usage for various applications. In recent years, CFD modeling has been used extensively for many applications. For example, Kongkapisuth et. al performed CFD analysis of a wind turbine using the k-ε turbulence model which was useful in determining the effect of the velocity and direction of wind flow on the free spinning speed of several wind turbines. [Kongkapisuth, Roynarin, & Intholo, 2017] Khan et. al explored the thermal and fluid dynamic characteristics of six pin fin heat exchangers through the CFD analysis of their pressure, temperature, and velocity profiles and determined that elliptical pin fins have the best overall performance. [Khan, Baruah, Dewan, & Mahanta, 2009] Kumar et. al developed a CFD model of biomass gasification in which he used a volatile break-up approach for the combustion portion of the gasification model which was useful in studying the effect of the equivalence ratio on gasifier temperature and output as well as the syngas production of varying biomass feedstock. [Kumar & Paul, 2019] In all of these, modeling was determined helpful in gasifier design due to the effectiveness of modeling in saving time, reducing costs, and optimizing design.

Artificial Neural Networks (ANN) are a neural network which uses experimental data mimicking the workings of the human brain to solve models in a human-like manner and to self-learn. This method gives a numerical result without an exact analytical solution. However, if input data differs greatly from the original data it was modeled with then it may return inaccurate results. Therefore, ANN cannot be used without sufficient data and diligence is required to calibrate and evaluate constants within the model. ANN has been used with limited but progressing success to predict gas composition and yield within gasifiers. CFD is sometimes categorized as a ANN. [Baruah & Baruah, 2014].

#### 2.6.5 The Finite Volume Method

The Finite Volume Method (FVM) uses the integration of transport equations governing heat transfer and fluid flow to describe the transport process of pure diffusion in steady state flow. The first step of this process is to discretize the geometric domain into finite volumes. Then each discrete element has partial differential equations integrated over them into algebraic equations. These equations are solved systemically to compute values for the variables desired.

The FVM turns terms in the conservation equation into face fluxes and evaluates them and the faces of the finite volumes. The net flux is equal to zero since flux entering a given volume is equal to that leaving the succeeding volume. In the FVM, implementation of boundary conditions is easy since unknown variables are evaluated at the center of individual volumes and not at their boundary faces. This makes the FVM strictly conservative which makes it an optimal method for CFD. [Moukalled, 2016]

Applications involving fluid flow, heat transfer, and mass transfer are very suitable for use with the FVM and therefore the FVM has developed congruently and closely with CFD technology. Complex applications can now be solved with the help of CFD and the FVM.

#### 2.7 Combustion of solid fuels

Solid fuels are burned in a variety of systems, some of which are similar to those fired by liquid fuels. In large industrial combustor, particularly boilers for electric power generation, coal is pulverized to a fine powder [7] (typically, 50 µm mass mean diameter and 95%smaller by mass than about 200 µm) which is sprayed into the combustion chamber and burned in suspension as illustrated in Figure.2.1 the combustion in the pulverized coal system has many similarities to the combustion of heavy fuel oils. Smaller systems generally utilize fixed- or fluidized-bed combustors that bum larger particles. The latter technologies are also applied to the combustion of wood, refuse, and other solid fuels. Air is fed into a fluidized bed at a sufficiently high velocity to levitate the particles, producing a dense suspension that appears fluidlike. Heat transfer in the bed must be high enough and heat release rates low enough to keep the bed relatively cool and prevent the ash particles from fusing together to form large ash agglomerates known as clinkers. Noncombustible solids are often used to dilute the fuel and keep the temperature low; most commonly, limestone is used in order to retain the sulfur in the bed at the same time. In contrast to the rapid mixing in a fluidized bed, only a fraction of the air comes in contact with the fuel in a fixed bed, or stoker, combustion system, with the remainder being introduced above the bed of burning fuel. Large amounts of excess air are required to achieve reasonable combustion efficiency,

and even with the large airflows, hydrocarbon and carbon monoxide emissions can be quite high, due to poor mixing above the bed. The increased air requirements lower the thermal efficiency of stoker units, so pulverized coal or fluidized-bed combustion is favored for large systems. Most large systems currently in use bum pulverized coal. We shall, for this reason, focus on these systems.



Figure 2.7 Coal combustion systems: (a) pulverized coal burner; (b) cyclone burner;(c) spreader stoker; (d) fluidized-bed combustor [7].

#### 2.8 Porous Medium Combustion

New developments in gas and oil burners in recent years were dominated by the aim of reducing pollutant emissions, reducing burner size and increasing the power modulation range. As far as the pollutant emissions are concerned, many improvements have been achieved. NOx emissions of gas burners have already reached levels in the range of 20 mg/kWh, but there is still a need for further improvements in the power modulation range, keeping the emissions low at the same time. There is also a strong necessity for further burner size reduction for all types of burners, without compromising the characteristics of the pollutant emission behavior.

The processes of gas combustion in an inert porous medium are interesting in many respects. It is widely used in practice and is promising in solving a number of problems in power engineering, chemical technology, ecology and fire and explosion
prevention. Porous medium combustion offers exceptional advantages compared with free flame burner techniques in order to achieve these goals. Unlike conventional premixed combustion processes, combustion in a porous medium does not operate with free flames. Rather, flameless combustion takes place in the three-dimensionally arranged cavities of a porous medium.

A novel combustion technique based on combustion in a porous medium has been developed in recent years [7]-[13] The major novelty of this work is the combustion stabilization principle, which allows extremely stable operation of the premixed combustion process in a porous matrix. The flame stabilization layer is placed inside the porous matrix and is well defined by the matrix design.

#### 2.9 Basic Principles of Porous Medium Combustor

In the presented approach, the porous medium combustion process stabilizes itself at the transition zone between two regions with different pore sizes. The most important criterion which determines whether or not a combustion process takes place inside a porous structure is its critical pore size. If the size of the pores is smaller than this critical dimension, flame propagation is prohibited; the flame is always quenched. On the other hand, if the pore size exceeds the critical dimension, flame propagation inside the porous structure is possible. The critical pore size may be determined by a modified Péclet number. The experiments of Backing et al [14] resulted in the following limiting modified Péclet number Pe for flame propagation in a porous medium:

$$Pe \ge 65$$
(2.10)  
Where  
$$Pe = \frac{S_{L}d_{m}c_{p}\rho}{\lambda}$$
(2.11)

Figure 2.8 shows the schematic setup of a porous burner with the preheating region A and the actual combustion region C Depending on the actual application, an additional region may be included in the porous burner where the heat of combustion is transferred to the particular, selective diffusion and heat exchange between gas and porous medium.



Figure 2.8 Schematic setup of a porous-medium [14].



Figure 2.9 Porous-medium stabilization principle [14].

In Figure 2.8, a photograph of a stabilized combustion process in a porous medium is shown and the temperature distribution is indicated. The good heat transfer properties keep the maximum temperature low, which also keeps  $NO_x$  emissions low. A very homogeneous temperature field is also achieved, keeping the carbon monoxide concentration in the waste gas low also. A considerable part of the heat from the combustion region is also transported upstream, causing about 10 times higher flame speeds compared with laminar free flames. This translates into a greater power density

and better space utilization. Due to these outstanding properties, porous burner technology is attractive for different fields of application.

### 2.10 Porous Medium Combustor

It is general practice to build gas combustors in such a way that they contain free-burning flames in an enclosure acting as a combustion chamber. The heat gases from the combustion chamber are subsequently fed through a heat exchanger to heat up water or produce steam. Combustors of this kind are characterized by high  $NO_x$  formation in the hot combustion region of the flame and by high temperatures of the hot emission gases leaving the heat exchangers or steam generators. Over the past few years, a great deal of investigation on combustion in porous media has been performed, starting with basic experiments mostly by Russian scientists, who found the combustion regimes and the flame propagation criteria for porous medium combustion as reported in Section 2.1. These basic thoughts were taken up and continued of [14] leading to the layout of a porous burner as shown in Figure 2.8



Figure 2.10 Schematic diagram of the combustor with two porous regions [14].



Figure 2.11 Typical emission values of a porous-medium burner compared with international norms [14].

In the case of application of the PMB in a household heating system, where the cooling of exhaust gases takes place, typical measured  $NO_x$  emissions for different ceramic materials are shown in Figure 2.11



Figure 2.12 Measured NO<sub>x</sub> concentrations in flue gases for low-power-operation for different ceramic Materials [14].

Different types of PM combustors with various materials of combustion zone have been developed in recent years (Figure 2.12)



Figure 2.13 Different ceramic porous burners made of (a) C/SiC structure; (b) Al2O3 fibre structure; (c) zirconium foam static mixer; (d) Fe-Cr-Al alloy wire mesh [14].

In Figure 2.13 a, combustion in a ceramic foam as a porous body is shown. The total thermal load is 20 kW with an air ratio number of 1.3. In Figure 2.6b an example of a ceramic fiber structure is presented. The thermal power is 15 kW with combustion at an air ratio number of 1.3. Figure 2.7c shows a static mixer as a suitable structure for porous medium combustion. Static mixers may be characterized by low conduction heat transport, a short start-up phase, excellent radiant heat transport, excellent dispersion properties and a very low pressure drop. The next example of a structure that may be used for porous medium combustion is the metal wire packing or so-called wire meshes. In the small wire packing shown in Figure 2.7d a thermal power of 10 kW is produced with an air ratio number of 1.3. Wire meshes show poor conduction heat transport and dispersion properties, owing to their high porosity. On the other hand, they have a short start-up phase, excellent radiation heat transport properties, very low pressure drop and the high resistance to thermal stresses occurring in its microstructure. More details of materials used in porous medium combustion technology are given in Section 2.2.3.

# 2.11 Ceramic Materials Employed in the Porous Medium Technique

The intensive heat transfers between the gas phase and the porous medium that this entails gives rise to a unique combination of advantages for combustion technology: the burners are compact, have low pollutant emissions and can be adjusted continuously over a wide range of powers. A special emphasis of optimization work in PMB technology has therefore been the development of high temperature-resistant ceramic and metal components. Important criteria for the selection of ceramics include its temperature resistance, its mechanical stability and its ageing behavior. Also of major importance for the use in PMBs are the pressure drop and the heat capacity of the ceramic materials. The pressure drop influences the necessary power of the blower and therefore also the amount of electrical energy necessary in a crucial way. Larger and stronger blowers demand much higher investment and running costs. Furthermore, noise emission might also be promoted. The heat capacity of the ceramic materials also determines the thermal inertia of the burner. With high thermal inertia, the burner is insensitive to fluctuations of the gas mixture properties. On the other hand, with a high heat capacity the start-up of the burner requires a rather long time until it reaches steady-state operation, leading to significantly increased start-up emissions. The temperature resistance is determined mostly by the melting point, but also by the thermal expansion rate of the material. Moderate thermal expansion rates avoid thermal stresses, which can promote breaking of the porous matrix, as ceramic materials tend to show a poor modulus of elasticity, which even decreases with higher temperatures. These criteria also affect the temperature switch resistance. High heat conductivity of the ceramic materials is also considered to be of major importance as hot spots are avoided, leading to an even temperature distribution with only minor thermal stresses inside the material. The main materials used today are ceramic foams or structures that resemble the static mixers or regular packing often used in process engineering [16]. The advantages of these structures are as follows:

• The open-pore structures with good flow-through properties keep pressure losses low and, therefore, low-cost burner blowers with a low-energy consumption can be used.

• Heat transfer is excellent. The gas is often forced to flow inwards and outwards, to split and reunite. With the convective heat transfer that this causes, a balanced temperature field is generated at a low level. This is accompanied by low pollutant emissions.

• The structures are characterized by a very low weight. This means that the thermal inertia is low, which has the effect that the burner heats up quickly on starting and adapts to power changes quickly. Metallic materials are less suitable as porous media because of their inadequate thermal stability. Temperature-resistant metal alloys might be used for temperatures below 1250°C. Their thermal properties are a high heat conductivity ranging from 10 W/mK at 20°C to about 28 W/mK at 1000°C, extreme thermal expansion and an extremely good resistance to thermal shock. The emissivity of metals varies strongly with the surface finish processing and the surface itself. It stretches at 300 K from 0.045 for polished nickel to about 0.5 for used stainless steel. For nickel-base and FeCrAl alloys the upper temperature limit is approximately 1400°C. For PMBs, typical maximum temperatures could be between 1400 and 1600°C, and in extreme cases even 1700°C. Therefore, materials based on aluminium oxide, silicium carbide and zirconium oxide are mainly used (Figure 2.14).



Figure 2.14 Commonly used porous ceramic materials [16].

**Aluminium oxide** (Al2O<sub>3</sub>) can be used up to approximately 1900°C under air. High SiO<sub>2</sub> contents between 20 and 40% reduce the application limit to approximately 1650°C. Because of its high thermal expansion coefficient and an average thermal conductivity, the resistance to temperature change of Al2O<sub>3</sub> ceramics is relatively low. **Silicium carbide** (SiC) can also be used at very high temperatures, usually up to 1600°C. The resistance to temperature change of SiC ceramics is very good, which is due to the low expansion coefficients and the high thermal conductivity.

**Zirconium oxide**  $(ZrO_2)$  can be used up to 2300°C but a change associated with a volume increase during cooling can destroy the structure. The high-temperature modification is stabilized by incorporating various additives. In this way, fully and partially stabilized ZrO<sub>2</sub> can be used up to approximately 1800°C. The high thermal expansion and the low thermal conductivity have a negative effect on the resistance to temperature change.

Parameter	Dimensions	Al <sub>2</sub> O <sub>3</sub>	SiC	ZrO <sub>2</sub>
	2			
Maximum allowable temperature in air	°C	1900	1600	1800
Thermal expansion coefficient $\alpha$ (20-1000°C)	10 <sup>-6</sup> 1/K	8	4-5	10-13
Thermal conductivity $\lambda$ at 20 °C	W/mK	20-30	80-150	2-5
Thermal conductivity $\lambda$ at 1000 °C	W/mK	5-6	20-50	2-4
Specific thermal capacity	J/gK	0.9-1	0.7-0.8	0.5-0.6
Thermal stress resistance parameter, hard Shock, $R(\sigma/E\alpha)$	К	100	230	230
Thermal stress resistance parameter, mild thermal Shock, $R(R \circ \lambda)$	10 <sup>-3</sup> W/m	3	23	1
Total emissivity at 2000 K		0.28	0.9	0.31

A comparison of the data for materials relevant for use in PMBs is shown in Table 2.2 **Table 2.2** Most important material data for Al2O<sub>3</sub>, SiC and ZrO<sub>2</sub>

The porosity and structure of porous media also have a strong influence on these property values. The resistance to temperature change is usually greatly improved by porosity. On the other hand, the enlargement of the inner surface due to an increase in the open porosity is a disadvantage if surface chemical reactions occur with the combustion gases. Along with the combination of different materials, it is important to note that a melting point reduction at the contact points can be caused by the formation of a eutectic. For example, the combinations SiC/Al2O<sub>3</sub> and SiC/ZrO<sub>2</sub> are critical.

The requirements on the porous medium are very different for the numerous applications for which porous medium burner technology can be used. Depending on the type of fuel, air and fuel flow and burner geometry, the temperatures to which the porous medium are subjected are very different. Moreover, individual criteria such as costs, lifetime, pollutant emission, mechanical stability (very important in the automotive industry), pressure loss and thermal inertia will be weighted differently depending on the application. For that reason, a number of manufacturers have developed different porous media which meet the stringent requirements of PMB technology.

# 2.12 Energy and Energy Resorts

#### 2.12.1 Biomass Energy

Biomass is the term used to describe all the organic matter, produced by photosynthesis that exists on the earth's surface [17]. The source of all energy in biomass is the sun, the biomass acting as a kind of energy store. To make use of biomass for our own energy needs we can simply burn it in an open fire to provide heat for cooking, warming water or warming the air in our home. More sophisticated technologies have been developed for extracting this energy and converting it into useful power and heat in more efficient and convenient ways. Until relatively recently it was the only form of energy which was used by humans and is still the main source of energy for more than half the world's population for their domestic energy needs. The extraction of energy from biomass is split into 3 distinct categories:

Solid biomass - the use of trees, crop residues, animal and human waste (although not strictly a solid biomass source, it is often included in this category), household or industrial residues for direct combustion to provide heat. Often the solid biomass will undergo physical processing such as cutting, chipping, briquetting, etc. but retains its solid form.

### 2.12.2 Biogas

Biogas is obtained by anaerobically (in an air free environment) digesting organic material to produce a combustible gas known as methane. Animal waste and municipal waste are two common feedstocks for anaerobic digestion. See the Biogas Technical Brief for more details.

Liquid Biofuels – these are obtained by subjecting organic materials to one of various chemical or physical processes to produce a usable, combustible, liquid fuel. Biofuels such as vegetable oils or ethanol are often processed from industrial or commercial residues such as bagasse (sugarcane residue remaining after the sugar is extracted) or from energy crops grown specifically for this purpose. Biofuels are often used in place of petroleum derived liquid fuels. See the Liquid Biofuels and Sustainable Development Technical Brief.

Solid biomass is widely used in developing countries, mainly for cooking, heating water and domestic space heating. Biomass is available in varying quantities throughout the developing world - from densely forested areas in the temperate and tropical regions of the world, to sparsely vegetated arid regions where collecting wood fuel for household needs is a time consuming and arduous task.

In past decades the threat of global deforestation, provided a focus for the efficient use of biomass (as well as introducing alternative fuels) in areas where wood fuel was in particular shortage. Although domestic fuelwood users can suffer greatly from the effects of deforestation, it often arises because of land clearing for agricultural use or for commercial timber. There have been many programmers aimed at developing and disseminating improved stove technologies to reduce the burden, primarily borne by women, of fuelwood collection as well as reducing health risks associated with smoke from burning fuelwood. Technologies have also been introduced to help with the processing of biomass to improve efficiency, allow for easy transportation or to make it more useable.

Crop and industrial biomass residues are now widely used in many countries to provide centralized, medium and large-scale production of process heat for electricity production or other commercial end uses. There are several examples in Indonesia of timber processing plants using wood waste-fired boilers to provide heat and electricity for their own needs, and occasionally for sale to other consumers. There are also small scale options to utilizing crop residues.

### 2.12.3 Biomass as a Renewable Source of Energy

The IEA defines biomass as "any plant matter used directly as fuel or converted into fuels (e.g. charcoal) or electricity and/or heat. Included here are wood, vegetal waste (including wood waste and crops used for energy production), ethanol, animal materials/wastes and sulphitelyes". Biomass is a carbon neutral fuel. This means that the carbon released during consumption is balanced by the carbon consumed by photosynthesis during plant growth. Thus, the net contribution to atmospheric  $CO_2$  is zero.

### 2.13 Mathematical of Combustion

## 2.13.1 Modeling Combustion in a Grate Furnace

Biomass combustion in fixed-bed combustor is complex and difficult to measure. The environment is hostile and difficult to observe, and the overall combustion process is highly complex, being influenced by a wide variety of parameters. As a result, conceptual modelling by means of computational fluid dynamics (CFD) has become a useful tool. Simulations based on validated models can give further insight into the combustion process and aid the optimization of furnace design and operation. In particular, CFD is useful for investigating the influence of individual parameters, since these are easily altered to analyses their effect.

As illustrated in Figure 2.14 grate combustor can effectively be divided into two regions: the fuel bed, comprised of both gaseous and particulate phases; and the freeboard, comprised of gas only. Depending on the objective, CFD can be used to predict combustion in the freeboard, in the fuel bed, or in both together.





#### 2.13.2 Freeboard modelling

Submodules to simulate gas flow and gas phase combustion are a standard feature of commercial CFD packages. Modelling the gas-only freeboard is, therefore, relatively straightforward for tasks such as optimizing the secondary air supply to increase mixing, improve burnout, and reduce emissions [18]. More specialized simulations, such as predicting the deposition of particulate matter on furnace surfaces or the formation of certain pollutants does, however, require the development and implementation of additional sub models by the user. A common challenge with freeboard-only models is assigning appropriate inlet conditions, *i.e.* composition, temperature, and flow characteristics of the gases leaving the fuel bed and entering the freeboard. These must be determined either by means of measurements or of a fuel bed model.

## 2.13.3 Fuel bed modeling

Owing to the complex conversion processes of the solid fuel particles, and the intense interactions between the particulate and gaseous phases, modelling the fuel bed in a grate furnace is inherently much more complicated and thus more computationally demanding than modelling the freeboard. The sub models describing these conversion processes are not available as built-in features of current CFD packages; they must be developed and implemented by the user in order to investigate issues specific to the fuel bed.

#### 2.13.4 Heterogeneous reaction models

Char is a porous, carbon-rich solid which is formed during pyrolysis. In addition to carbon, which typically constitutes over 90% of the char [20], small amounts of hydrogen, oxygen, nitrogen, Sulphur, and inorganic matter or ash, are also present. Oxidation of the char occurs through heterogeneous reactions between the solid char and gaseous reactants; the main reactants are oxygen, carbon dioxide, and water vapor. The reaction with oxygen is simply termed char combustion, while char gasification

refers to the reaction between char and any gaseous reactant other than oxygen. If the char is assumed to be pure carbon, the reactions can be described as follows:

$$\Omega_c C + O_2 \rightarrow 2(\Omega_c - 1)CO + (2 - \Omega_c)CO_2 \tag{2.12}$$

$$C + \frac{1}{2}O_2 \to CO \tag{2.13}$$

$$C + O_2 \to CO_2 \tag{2.14}$$

$$C + CO_2 \to 2CO \tag{2.15}$$

$$C + H_2 O \to CO + H_2 \tag{2.16}$$

Heterogeneous reaction rates are influenced by many factors, including: the total active surface area, the local gas reactant concentration, local temperature, pressure, char structure, and char composition. The overall reaction scheme can be described by three basic processes [20]:

1. Diffusion of mass and heat through the boundary layer surrounding the solid fuel.

2. Diffusion of mass and heat within the porous structure of the fuel.

3. Reaction of gases with solid surfaces.

Slower of the two 22-26 As a result, three distinct combustion regimes Can be identified, as illustrated in Figure 2.15 with reference to a spherical particle:



Figure 2.16 Schematic diagram of a porous material. Adapted from [20].





Zone I: The chemical reaction is slow with respect to the diffusion of the reactant, effectively limiting the overall reaction rate. Therefore, reactants have time to penetrate the porous structure and the concentration is uniform throughout. The reaction order in this regime is said to be the true, rather

than the apparent, reaction order.

Zone II: The chemical reaction and the diffusion of the reactant occur on a similar timescale. The chemical reaction is fast enough that the reactant cannot diffuse through the porous structure fast enough to maintain a uniform concentration throughout the fuel.

Zone III: The chemical reaction rate is so fast that the concentration of the reactant approaches zero. The overall reaction rate is limited by the diffusion rate of the reactants.

Models describing these heterogeneous reactions can be classified as *global models*, which determine the overall rate per unit mass of the fuel using an "apparent" chemical reaction order, or as more fundamental *intrinsic models*, which determine the overall rate per unit internal surface area of the particle using the "true" chemical reaction order.

# 2.13.5 Heterogeneous reaction models

### a) Char structure

The size, density, and internal structure of a particle may change as the particle

burns. Since heterogeneous reactions depend on the available surface area, sub models are required to account for these changes. Owing to its simplicity, the most commonly published submodel is the unreacted core model [26, 20], where the internal pore structure is assumed to remain constant during conversion. The size and density of the particle are then inversely related, with changes described as a function of mass loss [27]. A common assumption is that the density also remains constant during char oxidation, with particle shrinkage directly proportional to mass loss.

#### b) Char composition

To simplify the reactions, the char is commonly assumed to be pure carbon, resulting in Eqs. (2.10) - (2.13). However, in reality the char will contain 5-10%wt db of other elements, mainly hydrogen and oxygen [28, 29]. This can be taken into account by modifying the heterogeneous reactions, as done in [29], as well as the calorific value of the char, which can be estimated from [30].

# c) Heat of reaction

Char primarily reacts with oxygen, carbon dioxide, and water vapour. There is some scatter in the literature regarding exact heats of reaction; however, the char combustion (Eq.(2.10)a/b/c) and char gasification reactions (Eqs. (2.10) and (2.13)) are accepted as exothermic and endothermic respectively, with gasification values available in [29, 31]. The heat released during char combustion is a function of the calorific value of the fuel and the of combustion product(s). This necessitates assumptions about the char composition, and the combustion reaction, *i.e.* whether combustion is represented by Eq. (2.10)a, (2.10)b, or (2.10)c, as described in section.

## 2.13.6 Thermo chemical conversion models

Owing to their simplicity, the constant temperature model and the kinetic model are the most commonly utilized drying models in the literature. In the absence of suitable data for the kinetic model, the constant temperature model should be used, since it gives a reasonable approximation without any experimentally derived inputs. The transport model is more representative of the actual drying process; however, it is worth noting that this model requires extensive input/assumptions from the user which may diminish the potential benefits. Investigations into the pyrolysis of biomass fuels indicated that a single step pyrolysis model cannot closely represent the decomposition process and should only be used as an approximation [32]. If an approximation is sufficient, then the single step model is ideal since it is the simplest to implement, the least computationally expensive, and there is a dearth of kinetic data available. However, given the relevant kinetic data, a more sophisticated model such as a parallel step model, DAEM, or network model should be used. One of the main benefits is that these models account for the dependency of the char yield on the heating rate of the fuel. Of these, the parallel step model offers a significant improvement on the single step model for only a moderate increase in effort and computational expense. It is worth noting, however, that the distributed activation

energy model (DAEM) and the network models require a substantial increase in effort to implement and significantly more information from the user. The heterogeneous char reactions can be divided into two categories: the combustion reaction with oxygen, and the slower gasification reactions. At the temperatures typically present in a furnace, the char combustion rate is generally limited by the diffusion of oxygen to the particles, with the chemical reaction rate primarily acting to control the ignition temperature of the fuel. Since the reaction is, there more, primarily limited to the outer surface of the particle (zone III/IV combustion, Figure 2.8), the difference between the simple global model and the more complicated intrinsic model is negligible [33]. The global model is therefore sufficient provided appropriate kinetic data is available. For the slower gasification models, however, the overall reaction rate is likely to be limited both by the chemical reaction rate *and* by the diffusion rate of the reactant to the particle. As a result, the reactions may occur on both the internal and external

surfaces of the char particle (zone I/II combustion, Figure 2.8) and are better described by means of an intrinsic model. It is worth noting that the main drawback of the intrinsic model is that it necessitates assumptions regarding the initial internal structure of the char and how this structure changes during burnout. These assumptions vary widely across the literature, for biomass in particular, which may occlude the benefits associated with this model.

### 2.13.7 Review of Fixed-Bed Modeling

In fixed-bed or grate combustor, aerodynamic forces are insufficient to lift the majority of the particles. As a result, particles lie in contact, with voids between them, forming a well-defined fuel bed, as shown in Figure 2.18 In case, the objective is to simulate a section of a packed or fixed fuel bed in a biomass furnace. Consider the "as modelled" two-dimensional section highlighted in Figure 2.18 There are four approaches for achieving this [34]:



### Figure 2.18 Schematic of fixed-bed furnace [34].

(1) An Eulerian-Eulerian approach [24, 33,35,36,37-41]: The solid phase is represented as a continuum, and individual particles are not tracked (Figure 2.16). This

can be subcategorized depending on how the solid phase is represented; whether as a porous medium, or using the theory of granular flow.

(2) An Eulerian-Lagrangian/Discrete Particle Model (DPM) approach [42-44]: Each particle, and its properties, is tracked throughout the computational domain (Figure 2.17).

(3) A neighboring layer approach [45-47]: The bed is split into four layers representing fresh fuel, dry fuel, char, and ash (Figure. 2.18).

(4) A well-stirred reactor model (WSR) [48]: the bed is represented by a cascade of well-stirred, also termed perfectly stirred reactors; in a WSR, transport rates are assumed to be much higher than chemical rates (Figure. 2.19). The properties with the reactor are therefore uniform throughout, and



Figure 2.20 Eulerian-Lagrangian approach [34].



Figure 2.21 Neighboring layer approach [34].



Figure 2.22 Cascading reactor model [34].

In order to obtain a close match between measured and predicted ignition rates, a significant amount of model calibration was necessary. The first step involved identifying a number of parameters that influenced the ignition rate, including the solid phase thermal conductivity, the pyrolysis model and the corresponding reaction constants, the blowing factor, the particle-particle radiation model, and the model for the effective thermal diffusivity of the solid phase. Various relevant models/values for each of the parameters listed above were taken from the literature and varied, in turn, to ascertain their effect on the predicted ignition rate. Owing to the complexity of the overall model, the exact effect of different combinations of these parameters proved difficult to infer in advance. As a result, different arrangements were compared on a trial and error basis until the combination which provided the best match between measurements and predictions was determined. The culmination of the model calibration process is presented in section 2.4.7

Predicted ignition rates closely match the data in the sub-stoichiometric zone. For low air flow rates predictions slightly exceed measurements; nonetheless, the peak ignition rate is closely captured, as is the subsequent fall off in the ignition rate due to convective cooling. In line with the observations of Porteiro et al. [49, 50], the model also predicts a decreasing reaction zone thickness as the air flow rate increases. Deviations between measurements and predictions occur at higher fluxes where the model prematurely predicts extinction. In practice, any combustible gases leaving the bed will be completely burned in the freeboard. Some of the heat produced will be radiated back to the bed helping to sustain combustion, but will only penetrate a finite depth below the surface [51]. This is expected to have an increased effect at higher air flow rates due to the narrowing reaction zone, which brings the ignition front closer to the surface of the bed. Since the freeboard region and the associated radiation effects are excluded in the present simulations, this is the most likely cause of the differences in predicted and measured ignition rates at the higher fluxes. Collazo et al. [52] also validated their model using the same data. Both models achieve similar agreement between predictions and measurements in the sub-stoichiometric region. Their model, which included the freeboard, performed better in the fuel lean regime; however, it also prematurely predicted extinction. Recalling that the goal of the present study is to investigate channeling in modern industrial grate combustor, where combustion in the fuel bed typically takes place under sub-stoichiometric conditions, and ignition occurs from just above the grate, the model performance is acceptable.

### 2.13.8 Final results

Predicted ignition rates closely match the data in the sub-stoichiometric zone. For low air flow rates predictions slightly exceed measurements; nonetheless, the peak ignition rate is closely captured, as is the subsequent fall off in the ignition rate due to convective cooling. In line with the observations of Porteiro *et al.* [53, 54] the model also predicts a decreasing reaction zone thickness as the air flow rate increases. Deviations between measurements and predictions occur at higher fluxes where the model prematurely predicts extinction. In practice, any combustible gases leaving the bed will be completely burned in the freeboard. Some of the heat produced will be radiated back to the bed helping to sustain combustion, but will only penetrate a finite depth below the surface [51]. This is expected to have an increased effect at higher air flow rates due to the narrowing reaction zone, which brings the ignition front closer to the surface of the bed. Since the freeboard region and the associated radiation effects are excluded in the present simulations, this is the most likely cause of the differences in predicted and measured ignition rates at the higher fluxes. Collazo *et al.* [52] also validated their model using the same data. Both models achieve similar agreement

between predictions and measurements in the sub-stoichiometric region. Their model, which included the freeboard, performed better in the fuel lean regime; however, it also prematurely predicted extinction. Recalling that the goal of the present study is to investigate channeling in modern industrial grate combustor, where combustion in the fuel bed typically takes place under sub-stoichiometric conditions, and ignition occurs from just above the grate, the model performance is acceptable.



Figure 2.23 Steady-state ignition rate for different air flow rates after 900 s [52].

### 2.13.9 Development of mathematical model

The aim of modeling work is to describe the behavior of a system by easily varying every parameter, unlike experimental work, where the parameters cannot easily be changed. In this study, the model will be used to design and figure out the dimension of components and operating and efficiency parameters of purpose system.

#### 2.14 Mathematical formulation

Before going to the model formulation, the general approach to modeling this system has been elucidated first. The physical configuration of the model is illustrated in Figure 3.1. It shows a typical fibrous cylindrical DPF. When a slice (red part) is cut parallel to the axial direction of the DPF and is viewed from its top, it seems like a flat porous medium covered with solid fuels. So, an infinitely long flat porous medium is considered as a sample over which solid fuels of diameter of the scale of nanometer to micrometer are attached. The sample is taken long enough for the combustion wave to be completely contained within it and can capture a steady-state solution. Oxidizer is flowing from left to right through the porous medium and adjacent to the surface of fuel. The rate of oxygen diffusion to the surface of fuel is high so that the difference between the concentration of the oxygen at the gas/solid interface and the gas within the porous medium is small. The reaction front propagates from the right to left in the direction of fresh fuel and opposite to the direction of gas flow velocity which is referred to as opposed flow combustion. Since the gas flow velocity is sufficiently larger than the variations of the transport properties, all variations perpendicular to the gas flow velocity become negligible.



Figure 2.24 Physical configuration of the model [52].

Moreover, the deposited fuel layer is assumed to be thin enough so that the temperature gradient across the fuel can be neglected. Then the resulting phenomena might be treated essentially a one-dimensional and the axial distance is measured by xin the direction of gas flow velocity. The temperatures of the porous medium and fuel are presumed to be equal along the x direction. The difference of pressure along the porous medium is almost constant. The system has been considered as adiabatic so that the heat loss from the system to the external atmosphere arising only in near proximity to cold sides is taken to be negligible. A two-temperature model is employed where thermal no equilibrium between the porous medium and gas is allowed to occur within the reaction front. For simplicity reasons, a single-step exothermic heterogeneous reaction is considered by which solid fuel is converted (oxidized) directly to the gaseous product following: [solid fuel] (s) + n [O2] (g) (1+ n) [gaseous product] (g) where n is the mass of oxygen per mass of fuel ratio (stoichiometric). The present phenomena have been formulated by introducing a new constant parameter, f, termed as deposition of fuel. It is defined by f = Vf/VV in which VV (= Vf + Vg), Vf and Vg are respectively the volume of voids, volume of fuel and volume of gas. This is although taken to be

constant but informative. As a result, the species equation of fuel is circumvented from the model and yields a simplified model.

## 2.15 Literature Review

Yumlu [3] study of had carried out experiments with a porous flat flame burner, with heat extraction, on hydrogen-oxygen and hydrogen-air flames. The temperatures of these flames were determined experimentally and compared with those calculated from the thermodynamic data and the measured heat loss to the burner. The hydrogen concentration profile through the flames was lso determined with a quartz microprobe and a mass spectrometer. Combustion techniques based on PMC have been developed by Trimis (1995), Trimis and Durst (1996), Durst and Trimis (1997), and Durst et al. (1997). The main feature of their work was the combustion stabilization principle, which allowed an extremely stable operation of the premixed combustion process in the porous matrix. The combustion process was said to be stabilized with a sudden change of the pore size, corresponding to a change of the Peclet number inside the porous structure. The first measurements of temperature and species distributions within the submerged reaction zone stabilized inside radiant burners made of reticulated ceramic matrices were reported by Mital et al. (1997). The radiant burners and the flames stabilized within them were characterized in terms of stability limits, radiation efficiencies, and global pollutant emission indices. The burner tendency to flashback with increasing firing rates was observed in their experiments.

Linsheng Wei et al. [5] study of Numerical of Waste Heat Recovery from Tunnel Kiln Utilized to Produce Rare Earth Phosphor. An indirect heat recovery method is adopted to recover waste heat from tunnel kiln supplied by electricity utilized to produce rare earth phosphor. To ensure the quality of products and the life of tunnel kiln, a water tank is installed surrounding the cooling region of tunnel kiln as a heat exchanger. Meanwhile, a computational fluid dynamics model is developed to estimate and optimize the performance of this waste heat recovery. The predicted temperatures are in good agreement with measured results, and the error is within a reasonable range. In addition, a relationship between the inlet mass flow rate and the inlet water temperature is obtained in terms of desired outlet water temperature. Using water tank as a heat exchanger is an effective and reasonable method to recover waste heat of tunnel kiln utilized to further process of rare earth phosphor. The 4443 kg standard coal would be saved a year when inlet water temperature is 285 K. The numerical simulation results are in good agreement with the experimental data. The maximum average relative error between the simulation and experiment is 8.82 %, which is within a reasonable range. The numerical simulation method is very simple and suitable for this heat recovery application. (Figure 2.20).



Figure 2.25 Distribution of the error between simulation and measurement results [5].

Hongmin, W., et al. [6] study of Experimental on temperature variation in a porous inert media burner for premixed methane air combustion. The detailed axial temperature variations of the porous media burner during startup and switch-off processes were experimentally measured and analyzed for the premixed methane air combustion. A tubular burner filled by alumina pellets with diameters of 10 mm and 4.3 mm, respectively, was used as the porous media burner to study the effect of the burner inlet gas flow rate, equivalence ratio, and diameter of alumina pellets on the combustion temperature distribution along the burner axis and the combustion wave velocity. The results showed that the super adiabatic combustion could be achieved for the combustion wave velocity greater than zero, and the critical equivalence ratio corresponding to the super adiabatic combustion was bigger for the smaller pellet diameter or higher inlet air flow rate. This study can provide the useful information for the design and operation of the porous media burner, and is significant to understand the combustion phenomena in the porous media burner (Figure 2.26).



Figure 2.26 Effect of the equivalence ratio on the combustion wave velocity for different air flow rates and pellet diameters [6].



Figure 2.27 Compilation of the adiabatic temperature and the peak temperature in the burner [6].

# CHAPTER 3 MATERIALS AND METHODOLOGY

This chapter discusses the components of the laboratory equipment, the preparation of the equipment before the experiment. The principle of operation of the experimental equipment, the planning of operations in accordance with the objectives that have been initially set. Steps to try including measuring instruments used to collect data and save the analysis results. The experimental study will be conducted in three important cases: without porous media, with porous media and hot gas one-way flow. And a process using computers to help make predictions combustor efficiency. The predictions in three important cases: without porous media, with porous media, with porous media and hot gas one-way flow. The study is divided into the following:

3.1 Experimental

3.2 Simulation

# **3.1 Experimental and Methods**

# 3.1.1 Experimental setup

Figure 3.1 shows the proposed Solid Fuel Porous Media Combustor (SFPMC) setup with a water heating system. The experimental system consists of a proposed reactor (as shown in Figure 3.1) that was equipped with an air blower, a hot water pump, valves, fittings, and a hot water storage tank. The water was stored in an insulated storage tank and can be supplied as heating load. The flow rate of air and water were manually controlled by its respective flow control valves. During the test, hot water through the water tubes inside the heat exchanger chamber. Air was also supplied into the reactor over the air supply chamber (driven by air blower).



Figure 3.1 Solid fuel porous media combustor (SFPMC).

#### 3.1.2 Experimental equipment components

Experimental equipment for this research a solid fuel combustor with one-way gas flow. To make it easier to study the researcher had ordered 5 section components: 1) Combustor body 2) Porous media storage chamber 3) Combustion chamber 4) Vortex pump system for hot water production 5) Air blowing system into the combustion. Each of which has different functions and priorities. As the following details.

The combustor body has a cylindrical reactor as shown in Figure 3.1, has a size of 1985 mm. [H] height, 600 mm. [OD] outer, 500 mm. [ID] inner size, divided into 3 parts.

The first part the upper part is the contain solid fuel chamber. There is a cover to prevent gas leaks and install a dipstick to measure the fuel consumption during the experiment.

The second part the consists of a combustion chamber and a porous media chamber, installed on the right. Inside the porous media chamber, a group of pipes is installed for hot water utilization. The porous media chamber can be easily disassembled and assembled. In experiments with each size of porous media.

The third is the bottom to collect the combustion ash and the hot gas flows from the combustion chamber into the right porous media chamber through the right hole. (as shown in Figure 3.2).



Figure 3.2 Temperature measurement points.

Porous media chamber it has a rectangular shape as shown in figure 3.3. Its dimensions are width 190 mm [W], length 210 mm [L], height 420 mm [H]. Inside, there are 21 water pipes installed, which are made from stainless steel pipes with an outer size of 22 mm [OD.] It grows in 16 mm [ID]. Front and back are separated by a 5 mm. perforated steel grating to prevent the porous media from slipping into the gas flow.



Figure 3.3 Porous media chamber.

The combustion chamber, an experimental device in the study, is designed so that hot gas one-way flows. It flows from the combustion chamber to the right porous media chamber. (as shown in Figure 3.4) through three drilled holes with a size of 12 mm.



Figure 3.4 Combustion chamber and through three drilled holes with a size of 12 mm.

The water circulation pump system to produce hot water as figure 3.5 consists of a 200-liter hot water tank, cooling water pump sent to the air cooling tower. The flow rate is 5 - 40 liters per minute. The water pump is sent to the hot water system. The flow rate was 5 - 40 liters per minute. The Flow Meter 0.18 - 0.96 cubic meter per hour and the thermostat 10 - 110 °C. This experiment is set at 60 °C.



- Thermostat 10-110 °C

Hot water tank of a 200-liter

Figure 3.5 The water circulation pump system.

The system for blowing air into the combustor as shown in Figure 3.6 consists of an air blow model NVT-220 2.2 kw. Air volume 318 m<sup>3</sup>/hr, pressure gauge and the air storage tank has a capacity of 0.235 m<sup>3</sup>.



Figure 3.6 Air blowing system.

3.1.3 Data acquisition system



# Figure 3.7 Multi-channel logger.

The water temperatures, at the inlet and outlet of heat exchangers were recorded using a data logger (Data Logger model GL820midi Logger) equipped with Type-K thermocouples. On the other hand, the internal temperature of the combustor was recorded at 6 points (T1 to T6) as shown in figure 3.6. Point T1 measured the air supply temperature. Points T2-T4 measured the combustion temperature inside combustor along the air flow from left to right. While points T5 and T6 measured the temperature at the hot gas before and after water tubes, respectively. All temperature data were recorded in 30- second intervals. The water flow rate and fuel consumption rate were manually measured and recorded every half an hour.



Figure 3.8 Temperature measurement points.

#### 3.1.4 Fuel

Fuel preparation in this experiment will use solid fuel, wood charcoal the solid fuel is that each oxygen molecule comes into contact with the surface of the fuel, resulting in a combustion reaction. Carbon monoxide, a combustible gas along with getting some of the heat out oxygen is then mixed with carbon monoxide, resulting in a complete combustion reaction, eventually producing carbon dioxide. Which is a nonflammable gas along with getting the heat out as well therefore increasing the surface area of the fuel It is one of the parameters for enhancing the efficiency of the furnace for better. In which the researcher uses wood charcoal as a fuel they were ground to a width of 2 cm, a height of 2 cm and approximately 3 cm in length and then dried in the sun to remove moisture for about 8 hours. Only do it once for the whole experiment to obtain fuel of the same size and moisture value in each trial. The charcoal used in this study is from wood and is usually used for cooking (as shown in Figure 3.9). This served as the fuel for the combustor lower heating value of 28.18 kJ/kg. Primarily, the quantity of feedstock used were weighed and recorded before loading into the reactor and beginning the test. The instantaneous feedstock consumption rate was approximately measured using the level dipstick, installed at the top of the reactor.



Figure 3.9 Wood charcoal used in the study.

#### 3.1.5 Porous Media

The porous media is a highly efficient heat exchanger. But compact It can withstand high temperature conditions. With the working principle When hot gas flows through porous media will act as part of the heat absorber. And converts this absorbed part of the energy into heat radiation, which is called an emitter. Radiation to the other side of the material, which acts as a radiation absorber. The choice of material to use as a porous media is of the utmost importance. Due to the direct impact on combustion mechanism, maintenance and efficiency of the furnace, in this experiment, female stainless steel nuts were used. Because they are the same size and shape and are easy to find in the market.

This research used waste stainless steel nuts as the porous media which were categorized into three sizes: 8, 10 and 12 mm. These were used because it does not change its shape when exposed to heat, can easily bend, and can easily be found and bought from the market. The porous media chamber was square in shape as shown in figure 4. The width, length, and height are measured as follows: 190 mm. 210 mm. and 420 mm. It has 21 water pipes inside that is made from stainless steel. The pipe has an outside diameter of 22 mm. The side and backside of the porous media chamber has a 5 mm. steel grating to prevent the porous media from falling out as the gas flows. The porosity of 8 mm nuts is 0.42, 10 mm. 0.53 and 12 mm. equal to 0.62 calculated as equation. (7)



Figure 3.10 Porous media used in this study.

#### **3.1.6 Experimental Procedure**

The experiment evaluates the SFPMC with and without the porous media (stainless steel nuts) by determining the improvement in the heat transfer from product gas to the water tubes. The effect of porous media used was further investigated by varying its sizes: 8, 10, and 12 mm. The combustor was initially loaded with 40 kg. of solid fuel. Airflow and water flow rates were equally set. The airflow control valve was

adjusted to flow only from one direction. The air flows along the airway duct from left to right then through the combustion chamber. As the solid fuel burns and the temperature rises, the heat from the combustion chamber is brought to the right, at the heat exchange chamber containing the water pipelines. For the first setup, the heat exchange chamber was not filled with porous media. The other setups were then filled with porous media in which each setup was packed with the mentioned variation in sizes. The water pipeline then receives the heat energy from the combustion chamber. At the same time, water flowing through the pipe is also receiving the heat from the combustion causing the product gas temperature to decrease as it exits the heat exchange chamber. The heat absorbed by the water is then pumped back to the water tank, and then the water in the tank with lower temperature is circulated in the heat exchange chamber in a cycle. The results were collected and the data acquired delivering the highest calorific value was determined.

	ang system.					
Case No.	Case	Air flow rate	Water flow rate	$\dot{\mathrm{m}}_{\mathrm{fuel}}$	Temperature Water inlet and Water outlet	
		(m <sup>3</sup> /h)	(kg/s)	(kg/s)	(ΔT)	
Ι	Without *PM	318	0.833	0.00206	5.3	
II-A	8 mm PM	318	0.833	0.00206	9.8	
II-B	10 mm PM	318	0.833	0.00206	11.2	
II-C	12 mm PM	318	0.833	0.00206	7.8	

**Table3.1** The cases observed during the experiment for the proposed SFPMC with water heating system.

### 3.1.7 Working principle of porous media

Figure 3.11 shows the case without porous media wherein hot gas transfers heat to the water tube surface by heat convection and heat radiation. In this case, it does not contain porous media for heat storage so, heat is conducted and radiated to the water tube. There is only hot gas and air inside, resulting in low heat transfer capability. As a result, the thermal efficiency is lower than that of with porous media.





The case with porous media is shown in Figure 3.12, where the hot gas is transferred to the water tube by convection. Porous media as a material helps collect heat from the hot gas, thereby exchanging the heat from the porous media to the water tube. As a result, it conducts and radiates heat, causing increased heat to the water tube hence, promoting efficient heat transfer. The thermal efficiency is higher than in the case where the porous media is absent. The main characteristic of stainless steel nuts used as porous media is its high surface area to volume ratio giving good heat transfer capacity as well as its solid appearance. Hence, it has high absorption and radiation coefficient enabling it to transform energy well. It can be said therefore, that the porous media using stainless steel nuts is a high efficiency but compact heat exchanger.



Figure 3.12 Heat exchange of with porous media.

# 3.1.8 Performance Evaluation

Efficiency of hot water production kiln using solid fuel without porous media and with porous media unidirectional gas flow (SFPMC) proposed in this research calculated as:

$$\eta_{\text{SFPMC}} = \dot{Q}_u / \left[ \dot{m}_{\text{fuel X}} \text{ LHV}_{\text{fuel}} \right]$$
(3.1)

Where is the rate of heat transferred to hot water, which is a useful energy This heat transfer occurs under the heat transfer mechanism, both conduction and convection heat radiation of porous media calculated as:

$$\dot{Q}_{u} = \dot{m}_{w}C_{p}(T_{w,o} - T_{w,i})$$
 (3.2)

Fuel consumption rate ( $\dot{m}_{fuel}$ ) can be calculated from the amount of fuel used divided by the time being considered or estimated from the total amount of fuel divided by the total time spent in the experiment from the start of the experiment until the fuel runs out. The fuel used in this study is wood charcoal (or cooking charcoal) with the calorific value of 28.18 kJ/kg. Therefore, the fuel consumption rate is calculated as:

$$\dot{m}_{fuel} = \frac{\text{Total amount of fuel used per batch [kg]}}{\text{Total operating per batch [S]}}$$
 (3.3)

Heat transfer improvement on the basis of hot product gas can be evaluated as follows:

Water side

$$\Delta H_{im, water} = Q_{water, PM} - Q_{water, w/o}$$
(3.4)

Gas side

$$\Delta H_{im, gas} = \boldsymbol{Q}_{g, PM} - \boldsymbol{Q}_{g, w/o}$$
(3.5)

And the improvement in terms of efficiency is,

$$\eta_{\rm im} = \frac{\mathbf{Q}_{\rm water, PM} - \mathbf{Q}_{\rm water, w/o}}{\mathbf{Q}_{\rm water, w/o}}$$
(3.6)

Where  $\Delta H_{im}$  is the heat transfer improvement and  $n_{im}$  is the heat transfer improvement efficiency.

$$\mathbf{\mathcal{E}} = (Vt/Vs) \times 100 \tag{3.7}$$

The porosity  $(\mathcal{E})$  of porous media by water substitution method.

## 3.2. Simulation Geometry and Design as Experimental

There are two types of simulations: with porous media modeling and with-out porous media modeling. The hot gas flows from the combustion chamber into the porous media chamber through a 12 mm hole. This porous media chamber is modeled

on a rectangular design as shown in Figure 3.13, width 190. Mm. [W] Length 210 mm. [L] Height 420 mm. [H]. Inside there are 21 water pipes made of stainless steel pipes, external size 22 mm. [OD.], Expandable 16. [ID] front and back are separated by 5mm perforated steel grating to prevent porous media from entering the hot gas flow.



Figure 3.13 Model of the porous media chamber used in the simulation.

### **3.3 Governing Equations**

The equation of instantaneous mass, momentum, and energy conservation is the core that governs the equation in the solution of this model. These equations fluctuate, so they must be averaged over time to model the flow within the porous media chamber. Turbulent flow is assumed to be present in the porous media chamber. Therefore, the results of these mean equations are used as inputs to the turbulent equation.

The continuity equation:

$$\frac{\partial \rho}{\partial t} + \nabla(\rho U) = 0 \tag{3.8}$$

The momentum equations:

$$\frac{\partial(\rho \boldsymbol{U})}{\partial t} + \nabla \cdot (\rho \boldsymbol{U} \otimes \boldsymbol{U}) = -\nabla p + \nabla \cdot \tau + \boldsymbol{S}_{M}$$
(3.9)

where the stress tensor,  $\tau$ , is related to the strain rate by:

$$\tau = \mu (\nabla \boldsymbol{U} + (\nabla \boldsymbol{U})^T - \frac{2}{3} \delta \nabla \cdot \boldsymbol{U})$$
(3.10)

The total energy equation:

$$\frac{\partial(\rho h_{tot})}{\partial t} - \frac{\partial p}{\partial t} + \nabla \cdot (\rho \boldsymbol{U} h_{tot}) = \nabla \cdot (\lambda \nabla T) + \nabla \cdot (\boldsymbol{U} \cdot \boldsymbol{\tau}) + \boldsymbol{U} \cdot \boldsymbol{S}_{M} + \boldsymbol{S}_{E}$$
(3.11)

where  $\nabla \cdot (\boldsymbol{U} \cdot \boldsymbol{\tau})$  is the work due to viscous stresses and  $\boldsymbol{U} \cdot \boldsymbol{S}_M$  is the work due to external momentum sources.

Equations of states for both enthalpy and density are necessary to model transport equations as a closed system, therefore they are used in the porous media chamber model. Air is assumed to be an ideal gas during turbulent flow in the porous media chamber. Therefore, ideal gas equations of state are used in this simulation.

$$\rho = \frac{w p_{abs}}{R_o T} \tag{3.12}$$

$$\mathbf{d}h = c_p \, \mathbf{d}T \tag{3.13}$$

$$c_p = c_p(T) \tag{3.14}$$

where  $R_0 = 8.314 \text{ J/(mol·K)}$ , w is the molecular weight, and pabs is the absolute pressure.

Transport equations for turbulence models were solved with the Reynolds Averaged Navier-Stokes (RANS) equations through the introduction of averaged fluctuating components which were derived from equations (3.8)-(3.11). The turbulence kinetic energy, k, and the turbulence eddy dissipation,  $\varepsilon$ , are introduced through the k-epsilon (k- $\varepsilon$ ) model to the RANS equations to calculate the Reynolds stresses.

$$\frac{\partial(\rho k)}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial}{\partial x_m} (\rho U_m k) = \frac{\partial}{\partial x_m} \left[ \left( \mu + \frac{\mu_t}{\sigma_m} \right) \frac{\partial k}{\partial x_m} \right] + P_k - \rho \varepsilon + P_{kb}$$
(3.15)

$$\frac{\partial(\rho\varepsilon)}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial}{\partial x_m} \left[ \left( \mu + \frac{\mu_t}{\sigma_{\varepsilon}} \right) \frac{\partial\varepsilon}{\partial x_m} \right] + \frac{\varepsilon}{k} \left( C_{\varepsilon 1} P_k - C_{\varepsilon 2} \rho\varepsilon + C_{\varepsilon 1} P_{\varepsilon b} \right)$$
(3.16)

where  $C_{\varepsilon 1}$ ,  $C_{\varepsilon 2}$ ,  $\sigma_k$ , and  $\sigma_{\varepsilon}$  are all constants. [ANSYS, 2017]

#### 3.4 Meshing

Meshing is a process used to split a structure into smaller components in order to calculate parameters of a structure with greater accuracy. In meshing, you create a finite number of grid points within a structure called nodes. At these nodes, governing equations are solved numerically for the parameters desired. The greater the density of the meshing, the greater the accuracy in solving the problems. However, greater accuracy comes at the cost of greater difficulty in solving the equations. Therefore, meshes must be created in a balance with enough density to capture the most important details, but with a low enough density where the software is able to solve the equations in a timely manner.

The porous media chamber was meshed with 1,902,778 nodes and 8,758,918 elements. The total volume of the mesh was 10,561,267.125,252 mm<sup>2</sup>.

A face sizing metric was given to the wall of the chamber containing the nuts, excluding the throat of the chamber and above. This face sizing was necessary to

prevent the space between the nuts and the chamber from inflating too quickly and missing features, but being large enough to cause inefficient meshing.



Figure 3.14 Write the image in the program according to the actual combustor.

This picture shows the drawing from the real image for use in simulations in the program.



Figure 3.15 Comparison of experiments and Mathematical Model.

To make good models, we will not model the entire system. Because it takes a long time and has a high error value. Therefore, we simulate only the parts that are a priority to this study. In this experiment, we were interested in just one right-side porous media combustor.



Figure 3.17 The work model is divided into 2 parts.

When starting to use the program to calculate all the components, it was found that the computer worked very hard and took a long time. Therefore, the work model is divided into 2 parts and then using symmetric calculation commands to help calculate the virtual model to the fullest.





Pictures show all three domains: water, air, water pipe with air and nut.



Figure 3.19 Image for all three domains.

## 3.5 Simulation setup

The porous media chamber details are described in this section. This profile was calculated to compare three size nuts and four case studies, containing 1 size per time, in order size 8 mm, 10 mm, 12 mm porous media chamber, and with-out porous media to compare the efficiency of the combustor.


Figure 3.20 The names of All surfaces in order.

Names of all surfaces in order to easily establish boundary by calculating using heat transfer and model.



Figure 3.21 The setup boundary.

Set up the boundary by setting the domain name and other values, with the perimeter.



Figure 3.22 Set the gas inlet and outlet as well as water inlet and outlet.

Set the gas inlet temperature and temperature of the air inlet than set the water and air surface into the gas and water outlet.



Figure 3.23 The surface that is calculated in symmetry.



All domain is assembled as shown in this figure before mate.

Figure 3.24 View of the mesh from the outside of the gas.



Image of domain gas after the mesh is finished

Figure 3.25 View of the mesh from the outside of the plate.

Picture of domain plate after the mesh is finished.



Figure 3.26 View of the mesh from the outside of the water.

Picture of domain water after the mesh is finished.





Picture of domain nut after the mesh is finished.



Figure 3.28 View of the mesh from the outside of the porous media chamber.

# CHAPTER 4 RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

This research is a comparative study of the efficiency of charcoal fuels using porous media to enhance the efficiency of the furnaces, compared with charcoal fuels that do not have porous media to promote efficiency. The study results are divided into the following:

In the operation of the solid fuel furnace there is still a heat value that is not as good as it should be. That is, the energy received and the energy input is still very different. Some of the energy is lost in the exhaust gas. In which this lost energy will cause pollution If this lost energy is well managed, it well reduces the condition. Reducing energy loss in this area from the study found that putting porous media in the heat exchanging area helps to promote heat, increase the efficiency of the stove to prove that the basic assumptions are true or not Therefore conducting comparison experiments The experiment is divided into 2 parts. which are to find the maximum efficiency of the kiln without porous media in order to find the variable that results in the highest thermal value. And increasing the efficiency of porous kilns by using the parameters obtained from non-porous kilns to compare the thermal efficiency.

Study for the efficiency of the proposed kiln important variables is Thermal Efficiency. Therefore, it is important to know the important variable values which are mass flow rate of hot water, fuel consumption rate and water temperature inlet and outlet furnaces to calculate the rate of heat entering the furnace and the heat that is used In addition, the temperature inside the furnace is maintained (T1 to T7) to analyze the operating conditions of the furnace. In which all the temperature is recorded every 30 seconds by measuring the temperature with thermocouples (thermocouple K-type) and connect the data logger (midi logger) model GL 820. The water flow rate and fuel consumption are record by taking notes every 30 minutes.

In this study, charcoal is used as fuel and since the kiln used in the experiment is designed to be refilled once a batch type, the first step of the experiment is to weigh the charcoal in order to find out the total mass of fuel first then packed in the kiln The fuel consumption rate can be obtained from the amount of fuel used in comparison to the time used, which can be read from the fuel level dipstick installed on the top of the furnace.

The perforated materials used in this experiment are female bolts because they are easily found in the market and are of the same size using 3 sizes of bolts 8, 10 and 12 mm. After installing the perforated material and refueling, the readiness of experimental equipment must be tested such as the water circulation system, data logging systems of data recorders and blower fans. Ignite the burner using an exhaust fan installed at the exhaust outlet and then draws air through the combustion chamber, then use the torch to light the stove by spitting the fire into the hole that has been drilled at the entrance to the

combustion chamber. Wait for the fuel to ignite. After the burner is lit for 5 minutes, the experiment begins and the results are recorded.

Typically, porous media acts as a heat emitter and a heat absorber. Therefore, it was proposed as a water heating system. The heat extraction between the porous media was taken into account and noted as an important parameter. Hence, the experimental procedure was divided into four cases, which is shown in table 1, for both with and without porous media configurations.

#### 4.1 Experimental

The temperature profile of the product gas at the outlet was compared with and without the porous media as seen in Figure 4.1 The temperature was plotted from 0 - 190 minutes duration of the experiment. The red line graph shows the outlet gas temperature without the porous media whereas the blue line shows the outlet gas temperature with the porous media. As seen from the Figure 4.1, the profile of the outlet gas without the porous media reached a maximum temperature of 178°C but the temperature profile of the one with the porous media only peaked at 106°C. Hence, outlet gas temperature is higher without the porous media to absorb some of the heat energy released from the product gas as it flows out of the temperature exchange chamber.



Figure 4.1 Temperature profile of product gas at the outlet point with and without the porous media.

Figure 4.2 shows the gas temperature at various points for the four different cases stated in table 1. The heat exchange chamber was installed on the right hand sides of the combustor chamber, and having water pipelines that can be filled with porous media (shown in Figure 3.2). The water flow rate is 318 m<sup>3</sup>/h all throughout the duration of the experiment and the gas flow direction is unidirectional. The results from the experiment found that the average temperature in the middle of the combustion area is approximately 1,002 °C.



Figure 4.2 The gas temperature at different points for the four experimental cases.

The average inlet (Tgas,in) and outlet (Tgas,out) gas temperature shown in Figure 4.3 was taken within the 85 to 190 minutes duration of the experiment. Between this timeline, the steady state condition was observed. The average inlet gas temperature was observed to be 512°C, 661°C, 729°C, and 628°C for cases I, II-A, II-B, and II-C, respectively. Whereas the average outlet gas temperature observed for cases I, II-A, II-B, and II-C were 159°C, 106°C, 96°C, and 80°C, respectively. The graph shows that without the porous media (case I), the Tgas, in = 512 °C, and Tgas,out= 125 °C. Whereas for the other 3 cases with the porous media the average inlet gas temperature (Tgas,in) were recorded as 661°C, 729°C, and 628°C for cases II-A, II-B, and II-C, respectively. On the other hand, the outlet gas temperature (Tgas,out) observed were 129°C, 142°C, and 131°C for cases II-A, II-B, and II-C, respectively.



Figure 4.3 The average gas temperature taken at the inlet and outlet points of the four cases at steady state condition.

Figure 4.4 shows the average temperature of inlet gas and outlet gas), and the inlet water temperature  $(W_{in})$  and outlet water temperature  $(W_{out})$  in all four cases; namely, the case without the porous media and with porous media of 8,10, and 12 mm. sizes. The difference ( $\Delta T$ ) of the average inlet and outlet gas temperature for each case was calculated. The 10mm size porous media (case II-B) showed the highest with  $\Delta T =$ 587°C, followed by the 8 mm. size porous media (case II-A) with  $\Delta T = 532$ °C, the 12 mm. size porous media (case II-C)  $\Delta T = 497^{\circ}$ C. and without\*PM (case I) the lowest with  $\Delta T = 387^{\circ}C$ . For the recorded data without the porous media (case I), the inlet and outlet water temperature were 49.5°C, and 54.8°C, respectively. The other cases II-A, II-B, and II-C (8mm, 10mm, and 12mm sizes) with porous media, reported 48.7°C, 49.6°C, and 48.6°C, respectively at the inlet water temperature (Win). As for the outlet water temperature (W<sub>out</sub>), cases II-A, II-B, and II-C recorded 58.5°C, 60.8°C, and 56.5°C, respectively. Based on the recorded data, the case with the highest average temperature difference ( $\Delta T$ ) of the inlet and outlet gas temperature was found in 10 mm size (case II-B) porous media at about 587°C. Moreover, the highest average temperature difference of the inlet and outlet water temperature was also seen on case II-B (10 mm size) having  $\Delta W = 11$  °C. followed by the 8 mm. size porous media (case II-A) with  $\Delta W = 9$  °C, the



12 mm. size porous media (case II-C)  $\Delta W = 7$  °C. and without\*PM (case I) the lowest





The water temperature profile at the inlet and outlet points of the heated water (within the porous media pack) is presented in figure 10 through the calculated absorbed heat rate using equation 2 for each of the four cases. Since the storage tank was controlled to a relatively constant temperature of 60°C, there were no observed fluctuations concerning the water temperature. Hence, the absorbed heat rate was plotted instead. The maximum absorbed useful heat rate during the quasi-steady state occurred when the 10 mm. (case II-B) steel nuts were used as porous media with a highest value of 39.09 kW.



Figure 4.5 The absorbed useful heat rate of the four cases (Without\*PM, 8mm PM, 10mm PM, and 12mm PM.

The thermal efficiency of the proposed SFPMC for the four cases: without porous media, 8mm porous media, 10mm porous media, 12mm. porous media, and compared with the research of Arwut and Jarruwat references number 15 are shown in figure 4.6. Results showed that the maximum and the highest average value of thermal efficiency calculated was obtained from using steel nuts porous media that is 10mm in size. It solved achieved the highest value of 39.09 kW. of absorbed useful heat rate, and thermal efficiency of 67.32% thermal efficiency compared to the one without the porous media (shown in Figures 4.5,4.6). With regards to the combustion stability of the system, the use of solid fuel resulted to a high fluctuation rate, which might be due to the high flowrate and combustion rate of the solid feedstock.



Figure 4.6 The thermal efficiency of the SFPMC system.

The balance the heat of the combustor as the law of energy conservation means the energy entered is equal to the heat energy absorbed. The heat balance between water and gas expendable error less than 10 % (Shows in Figure 4.7).



Figure 4.7 Energy balance of heat.

## 4.2 Simulation

The results of this simulation are presented the results, the data collected, and the implications and importance of that data. It evaluates how this type of simulation provides valuable feedback and insight into optimal porous media design.

# 4.1.1 CFD Simulation of mesh in porous media chamber

The red area represents the symmetrical calculating surface, while the green area is a splicing surface with heat transfer.



Figure 4.8 Convergence result of gas momentum.



Figure 4.9 Convergence result of gas momentum.

# 4.1.2 CFD Simulation of hot gas temperature profiles in porous media chambers.

Figure 4.10 shows the velocity profile of the hot gas measured at the center plane of the porous media chamber. Velocities in this figure ranged from 0 to 1.945 m/s. This computer simulation demonstrates the importance of the hole size through which the hot gas passes, and how the simulation can optimize porous media chamber design for shape, size and hot gas particle distribution.





In this section, the results of temperature modeling developed using the heat source and hot gas flow method in porous media chamber Shows that there is a oneway flow of hot gas from the combustor chamber to the porous media chamber filled with porous media.



Figure 4.11 Temperature of volume rendering gas

Figure 4.12 shows the velocity profile of water in this figure ranged from 0 to 8.364 m/s. This study focuses on the influence of porous media chamber on the resulting hot water, which affects the efficiency of solid fuel combustor. Stainless steel nut is placed inside the right porous media chamber, which contains hot water pipes. The system has two system configurations: porous media chamber without porosity compared to porous media chamber with porosity.



Figure 4.13 shows the chamber temperature profile of a porous media with 21 water pipes temperature of water ranging from 49.6 to 621.6 °C. The water temperature profile at the inlet and outlet points of the heated water (within the porous media pack) is presented in Figure 4.5 through the calculated absorbed heat rate using equation 2 for each of the four cases. Since the storage tank was controlled to a relatively constant temperature of 60°C, there were no observed fluctuations concerning the water temperature. Hence, the absorbed heat rate was plotted instead. The maximum absorbed useful heat rate during the quasi-steady state occurred within the 10 mm.





The overview of the water and hot gas temperature was good when compared to the experimental results and the computer simulation results.

As shown in Figure 4.14, where the temperature results were compared with the size of the nuts loaded in the porous media chamber by 1 size per time. That is, nut size 8 mm. the first time, nut size 10 mm. the second time and nut size 12 mm the third time, the water inlet temperature is about 48 °C - 49 °C. The water output temperature between the experiment results and the computer simulations is about 56 °C - 63 °C, the computer simulation is a useful tool for predicting water temperature.





Figure 4.14 Comparison of experiment temperature water to the computer simulation.

As shown in Figure 4.15, where the temperature results were compared with the size of the nuts loaded in the porous media chamber by 1 size per time, time 1 nut size 8 mm, time 2 nut size 10 mm. and time 3, the 12 mm nut, 8 mm nuts size, hot gas inlet experimental results 661 (°C), hot gas inlet simulation results, 661 (°C), hot gas out experimental results 129 (°C), hot gas out simulation results 99.5 (°C), 10 mm nuts size, hot gas inlet experimental results 729 (°C), hot gas out simulation results 89.6 (°C), 12 mm nuts size, hot gas inlet experimental results 142 (°C), hot gas out simulation results 89.6 (°C), 12 mm nuts size, hot gas out experimental results 129 (°C), hot gas out simulation results 89.6 (°C), 12 mm nuts size, hot gas out experimental results 132 (°C), hot gas out simulation results 110.3 (°C),



Figure 4.15 Comparison of experiment temperature hot gas to the computer simulation.

#### **4.3 Results Simulation Validation**

Table 4.1 shows the comparison of the experimental results with the simulation results. The table consists of 8,10 and 12 mm nuts. For 8 mm nuts, water inlet experimental results 48.7 (°C), water inlet simulation results 48.7 (°C), water out experimental results 58.5 (°C) and the water out simulation result is 60.5 (°C) and error 2 (°C). Hot gas inlet experimental results 661 (°C), hot gas inlet simulation results, 661 (°C), hot gas out experimental results 129 (°C) and hot gas out simulation result is 139.2 (°C) and error 10.2 (°C). For 10 mm nuts the water inlet experimental results 49.6 (°C), water inlet simulation result is 60.8 (°C) and water out simulation result is, 63.2 (°C) and error 2.4 (°C). Hot gas out experimental result is 129 (°C), hot gas out experimental result is 151.8 (°C) and error 9.8 (°C). For 12 mm nuts, the water inlet experimental result is 48.6 (°C), water inlet simulation result is 48.6 (°C), the water out simulation result is 48.6 (°C), the water out simulation result is 56.5 (°C), the water out simulation result is 58.3 (°C). Hot gas inlet experimental result is 56.5 (°C), the water out simulation result is 56.5 (°C). Hot gas inlet water out simulation result is 56.5 (°C). Hot gas inlet water out simulation result is 56.5 (°C), the water out simulation result is 56.5 (°C). Hot gas inlet water out simulation result is 56.5 (°C), the water out simulation result is 56.5 (°C). Hot gas inlet water out simulation result is 56.5 (°C). Hot gas inlet water out simulation result is 56.5 (°C). Hot gas inlet water out simulation result is 56.5 (°C). Hot gas inlet water out simulation resu

simulation result is, 628 (°C), hot gas out experimental result is 132 (°C), hot gas out simulation result is 141.3 (°C) and error 9.3 (°C).



Nut size	Water in (°C)		Water out (°C)				Gas in (°C)			Gas out (°C)		
(mm)	Exp.	Sim.	Exp.	Sim.	error	% error	Exp.	Sim.	Exp.	Sim.	error	% error
8	48.7	48.7	58.5	60.5	2	1.21	661	661	129	139.2	10.2	14.19
10	49.6	49.6	60.8	63.2	2.4	1.51	729	729	142	151.8	9.8	14.87
12	48.6	48.6	56.5	58.3	1.8	1.04	628	628	132	141.3	9.3	13.14

 Table 4.1 Comparison of experiment results to simulation results.



# 4.4 CFD Simulation of hot gas temperature profiles in porous media chambers. (After fixing the gas heat transfer channel from 1 hole as 5 holes)

Figure 4.16 shows the profile when drilling additional 5 holes. The simulation shows that it can improve the efficiency of hot gas transfer to the porous media chamber when compared with only one hole of heat transfer (Figure 4.11 Temperature Volume Rendering Gas). This computer simulation demonstrates the importance of the number of holes through which the hot gas passes, and how the simulation can optimize porous media chamber design for shape, number and hot gas particle distribution.



Figure 4.16 Temperature volume rendering gas.

Figure 4.17 shows the water temperature profile of 21 pipes. The water temperature profiles at the inlet and outlet points of warm water ranges from 56.76°C to 802.4°C. (Inside the chamber, the perforated media is increased to 5 holes). When the additional holes are drilled, the hot gas is transferred to the bile duct, resulting in higher temperatures compared to the transmission of heat with a single hole temperatures from 49.6°C to 621.6°C, (Figure 4.13 Temperature volume water).



Figure 4.17 Temperature volume water.

Hot gas particle distribution from computer simulations on dispersion of hot gas particles in 1 hole shows that, the hot gas particles are not distributed well as they should. But, from computer simulations of drilling additional 5 holes shows that the particles of hot gas are distributed much better. Looking at Figure 4.18, the simulation results compared between 1 hole gas particle distribution and 5 holes gas particle distribution, the thermal efficiency increased in all cases. The porous media was previously 31.86%, increased to 49.89%. Signed porous material size 8 mm. from 58.90%, an increase of 76.95%, porous media size 10 mm. from 67.32%, an increase of 85.35%, porous media size 12 mm. from 46.88%, an increase of 64.91% (Figure 4.19)



Hot gas particle distribution 5 hole.



Thermal Efficiency of SFPMC in this case, compares the heat transfer of only one hole to drilling additional 5 holes. The results showed that the maximum thermal efficiency was calculated using a 10 mm. porous media. Previously, the maximum value was 39.09 kW. After drilling additional 5 holes, the maximum value was 49.56 kW, and the original thermal efficiency was 67.32%. The heat more evenly compared to the heat transfer of a single hole.



Figure 4.19 The thermal efficiency of the SFPMC system.(After fixing the gas heat transfer channel from 1 hole as 5 holes)



# CHAPTER 5 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

In the past decade, porous media combustor (PMC) technology had drawn a great attention of researchers in many applications, regarding heat transfer enhancement processes. The most attractive feature of such technology is its distinctive performance. However, according to porous medium a stationary solid matrix, the fuel can only be fluid. In earlier studies, many researchers focused on both experimentally and mathematical modelling developments of PMC reactors for gas and liquid fossil fuel. This study proposed the new concept of porous media application for solid fuel combustor. The experimental and theoretical (computer simulation) studies were conducted for this study. The experimental study was conducted in two important cases: with- and withoutporous media. Three sizes of stainless steel hoax-nuts used in this study are: 8, 10 and 12 mm. The simulation of solid fuel porous media combustor (SFPMC) system was done using the ANSYS computer software. The results from this simulation was validated by using the same input data as using in the experimental study and solid feedstock was obtained from the literatures.

#### 5.1 Conclusion

The experimental system of the proposed SFPMC was setup and investigated on its performance. The waste stainless steel nuts were used as porous media and wood charcoal was used as solid. Regarding this biomass charcoal as the renewable energy, it can be said that the proposed system can be possibly applied for all fuel, both fossil and renewable energy. The experimental setup was done for two main cases: without- and with-porous media, case I and case II, respectively. For case II, the porous media was further configured according to sizes: 8mm (case II-A), 10mm (case II-B), and 12mm (case II-C). The collected data were used to determine the setup with the highest heat transfer efficiency to the water tubes during combustion thereby giving a higher heating value to the system and then comparing it to a reactor (case I). Based on the results, porous media encourages higher heat transfer efficiency as observed from the rise in the temperature of water at the heat exchange chamber during the experiment. This was also seen after comparing the water temperature at the inlet and outlet points of the two main setup. Porous media induces both the occurrence of conduction and convection heat transfer to water tubes result in higher heating temperatures as compared to the nonporous one. Moreover, it was also noted that the size of the porous media affects the efficiency of the heat transfer occurrence to the water tubes. Based on the experiment, the size of the 10 mm size steel nut porous media was found to have the greatest thermal heat transfer rate among the other tested sizes.

The simulation study of the proposed SFPMC system was done by using the ANSYS computer software for two important cases as same as the experiment: withoutand with-porous media. It was found that the results obtained by computer simulations in all cases were consistent with the heat radiation combustion theory of porous media. And it is consistent with the study results from the experiment. From a comparison comparative study of solid fuel combustion combustor with and without porous media installed, it was found that the kilns with porous had higher heat transfer efficiency than combustor without porous media installed. Furthermore, the effect of using various sizes of porous media was explored by using 8, 10, and 12 mm stainless steel nuts in the study. With the porous media technique, the 10 mm stainless steel nuts with the porosity of 0.53 greatly improved the performance of the proposed SFPMC system. At steady state combustion condition, the maximum average combustion temperature reached 1,002 °C and the thermal efficiency of about 67 %, was obtained.

## **5.2 RECOMMENDATIONS**

Continuous combustion causes a constant temperature of heat and causes the increase of temperature of the outlet water. Therefore, the size of charcoal fuel affects the burning and efficiency of the furnace. The next experiment should grind the charcoal to about the same size. The size of the air inlet and air outlet hole affects the heat transfer. Because this experiment uses wood charcoal as fuel, it causes some soot to fill the holes causing the holes to become smaller, the hot air that is transferred to the porous material is less. In the next experiment, the inlet and outlet should be enlarged.

The shape of the air inlet and air outlet hole affects the heat transfer. Due to this experiment, the shape of the air inlet and the air hole into a round shape of 12 mm, causing the hot air sent to the porous material not distributed as it should be. The design of the air inlet and outlet should be in a cone shape. To help distribute heat to better porous materials and the next experiment should experiment with cyclic reversal gas flow.



# List of Bibliography

- Boonrit, P., and Kumar, S., (2013). Experimental Study on the Performance of a Solar-Biomass Hybrid Air-Conditioning System. Renewable Energy 57, 86-93.
- [2] Pongsing, C., and Boonrit P., (2014). Experimental Investigation on the Performance of a Porous-Media Combustor for Solid Feedstock. International Conference on Engineering Science and Innovative Technology, 256 -263.
- [3] Yumlu, V.S., (1966). Temperatures of flames on porous burners. Combustion and Flame 10(2),147–151.
- [4] Yoshizawa, Y., Sasaki K. and Echigo, R.,(1988. Analytical Study of Structure of Radiation Controlled Flame. Internal Journal Heat and Mass Transfer 31(2), 311-319.
- [5] Linsheng, Wei., et al, (2014). Numerical Study of Waste Heat Recovery from Tunnel Kiln Utilized to Produce Rare Earth Phosphor. International Energy Journal 14,167-176.
- [6] Hongmin, W., et al., (2014). Experimental study on temperature variation in a porous inert media burner for premixed methane air combustion. Energy 72, 195-200.
- [7] Narnaware, S., and Pareek, D., (2015). Performance Analysis of an Inverted Downdraft Biomass Gasifier Cookstove and its Impact on Rural Kitchen. International Energy Journal 15, 123-134.
- [8] Siou-Sheng, S., Wei-Hsiang L. and Sheng-Jye, H., (2016). Experimental study of the heat recovery rate in a porous medium combustor under different hydrogen combustion modes. International Journal of hydrogen energy 41, 15043-15055
- [9] Mohammad Shafiey, D., Reza, E., Mehrzad, S. and Meisam, F., (2017). Experimental analysis of natural gas combustion in a porous burner. Experimental Thermal and Fluid Science 84, 134–143.
- [10] Iman S., Mofid G., Alireza H. and Mostafa A., (2017). Effect of open cell metal porous media on evolution of high pressure diesel fuel spray. Fuel 206,133–144.
- [11] Boonrit, P. and Chakkawan, B., (2016). Thailand. Comparative Study on the Performance of a Porous Media Combustor Fueled with Solid Feedstock. 13th Eco-Energy and Materials Science and Engineering Symposium, 320-324.
- [12] Mohammad, S.D., Reza, E., Mehrzad, S. and Meisam, F., (2017). Experimental analysis of natural gas combustion in a porous burner. Experimental Thermal and Fluid Science 84,134-143.

- [13] Kaplan, M. and Hall, M.J., (1995). The Combustion of Liquid Fuels Within a Porous Media Radiant Burner Experimental Thermal and Fluid Science, No.1, Vol. 11, 13-20.
- [14] Kitti, K. and Bundit, K., (2017).Comparison of Combustion Behavior between Solid Porous Burners Installed the Porous Emitter and Non-Porous Emitter. Energy Procedia 138, 2-7.
- [15] Arwut L. and Jarruwat C., (2017). Development of porous media burner operating on waste vegetable oil. Applied Thermal Engineering 110, 190–201.
- [16] Yoshihiko, H. and Ayumi, K., (2018). Estimation of Knudsen diffusion coefficients from tracer experiments conducted with a binary gas system and a porous media. Journal of Contaminant Hydrology 210, 65-80.
- [17] Nicolas, R., Claudio, S., Emilio, P.and Mario, T., (2017). Hydrogen production from algae biomass in rich natural gas-air filtration combustion. International Journal Hydrology Energy 42, 5513 – 5522.
- [18] Hans, G., Sebastian, C., Mario, T. and Hernan, O., (2018). Syngas production from polyethylene and biogas in porous media combustion. International Journal of Hydrogen Energy 43, 4294-4304.
- [19] Arrieta, C., Garcia, M., Alex, A.and Amell, A., (2017). Experimental study of the combustion of natural gas and high-hydrogen content syngases in a radiant porous media burner. International Journal of Hydrogen Energy 42, 12669-12680.
- [20] Iman, S., Mofid, G.B., Alireza, H., and Mostafa, A. M., (2017). Effect of open cell metal porous media on evolution of high-pressure diesel fuel spray. Fuel 206, 133-144.
- [21] Dan, W. Hongsheng, L. Maozhao, X. Hong, I. Wence, S. (2012). Experimental investigation on low velocity filtration combustion in porous packed bed using gaseous and liquid fuels. Experimental Thermal and fluid Science 36, 169-177
- [22] Yoshihiko, H. and Ayumi, K., (2018). Estimation of Knudsen diffusion coefficients from tracer experiments conducted with a binary gas system and a porous medium. Journal of Contaminant Hydrology 210, 65–80.
- [23] Hans, G. Sebastian C., Mario T. and Hernan O.,(2018).Syngas production from polyethylene and biogas in porous media combustion. International journal of hydrogen energy 4 3, 4294-4304.
- [24] Kittikorn, S., Natthawud, D., Nigran, H. Rameshprabu, R. and Tanongkiat, K.,
   (2017). Waste-to-Energy: Producer Gas Production from Fuel Briquette of Energy Crop in Thailand. International Energy Journal 17, 37–46.

- [25] Gajanan, N. Shelke and Mahanta, P. (2016). Feasibility Study on Utilization of Biomass Briquette in a Conventional Downdraft Gasifier. International Energy Journal 16, 157-166.
- [26] Aekkaphon, C., Usa, M. G., Sumrerng, J. (2019). Self-aspirating/air-preheating porous media gas burner Applied Thermal Engineering 153, 181-189
- [27] Ying, X. Zili, Y., Shixuan, W., Aiwu, F., (2019). Effects of flow rate and fuel/air ratio on propagation behaviors of diffusion H2/air flames in a microcombustor. Energy 179, 315-322.
- [28] Knowledge of charcoal Retrieved January 9, (2020) [Online]. Available : http://www.tan charcoal.com.html
- [29] Patricia, T., et al, (2015). Maximizing the greenhouse gas reductions from biomass: The role of life cycle assessment. Biomass Bioenergy 81, 35-43.
- [30] Abdul Mujeebu, M. T., et al, (2009). Combustion in porous media and its applications – A comprehensive survey. Journal of Environmental Management 90, 2287–2312.
- [31] Baruah, D., & Baruah, D. C. (2014). Modeling of biomass gasification: A review. Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews, 39, 806-815.
- [32] Janajreh, I., & Al Shrah, M. (2013). Numerical and experimental investigation of downdraft gasification of wood chips. Energy Conversion and Management, 65, 783-792.
- [33] Jaojaruek, K. (2011). Experimental and Numerical Studies on the Performance of Two-Stage Downdraft Wood Gasifier. (Energy Engineering). Asian Institute of Technology.
- [34] Jaojaruek, K. (2014). Mathematical model to predict temperature profile and air-fuel equivalence ratio of a downdraft gasification process. Energy Conversion and Management, 83, 223-231.
- [35] Kumar, U., & Paul, M. C. (2019). CFD modelling of biomass gasification with a volatile break-up approach. Chemical Engineering Science, 195, 413-422.
- [36] Silva, J., Teixeira, J., Teixeira, S., Preziati, S., & Cassiano, J. (2017). CFD Modeling of Combustion in Biomass Furnace. Energy Procedia, 120, 665-672.
- [37] Porteiro J., Patiño D., Collazo J., Granada E., Moran J., and Miguez J. L.,
   (2010) ."Experimental analysis of the ignition front propagation of several biomass fuels in a fixed-bed combustor," Fuel, vol. 89, pp. 26-35.
- [38] Porteiro J., Patiño D., Miguez J. L., Granada E., Moran J., and Collazo J., (2012)."Study of the reaction front thickness in a counter-current fixed-bed combustor of a pelletised biomass," Combustion and Flame, vol. 159, pp. 1296-1302.

- [39] Porteiro J., Patiño D., Collazo, J. Granada, E. Moran, J. and Miguez L., (2010) ."Experimental analysis of the ignition front propagation of several biomass fuels in a fixed-bed combustor," Fuel, vol. 89, pp. 26-35.
- [40] Porteiro J., Patiño D., Miguez J. L., Granada E., Moran J., and Collazo J., (2012). "Study of the reaction front thickness in a counter-current fixed-bed combustor of a pelletized biomass," Combustion and Flame, vol. 159, pp. 1296-1302.
- [41] ANSYS CFX-Solver Theory Guide, (2009). South pointe, 275 Technology Drive, Canonsburg, USA: ANSYS Inc.
- [42] Eaton A. M., Smoot L. D., Hill S. C., and Eatough C. N., (1999)."Components, formulations, solutions, evaluation, and application of comprehensive combustion models," Progress in Energy and Combustion Science, vol. 25, pp. 387-436.
- [43] Souza-Santos M. L de., Solid Fuels Combustion and Gasification: Modeling, Simulation and Equipment Operation: Marcel Dekker, Inc., 2004.
- [44] Zhou H., Jensen A. D., Glarborg P., Jensen P. A., and Kavaliauskas A., (2005)."Numerical modeling of straw combustion in a fixed bed," Fuel, vol. 84, pp. 389-403.
- [45] Williams A., Pourkashanian M., and Jones J. M., (2001) ."Combustion of pulverised coal and biomass," Progress in Energy and Combustion Science, vol. 27, pp. 587-610.
- [46] Souza-Santos M. L. de, Solid Fuels Combustion and Gasification: Modeling, Simulation and Equipment Operation: Marcel Dekker, Inc., 2004.
- [47] Smith I. W., "The combustion rates of coal chars: A review, (1982)."Symposium (International) on Combustion, vol. 19, pp. 1045-1065.
- [48] Jones J. M., Pourkashanian M., Williams A., and Hainsworth D. (2000)."A comprehensive biomass combustion model," Renewable Energy, vol. 19, pp. 229-234.
- [49] Di Blasi C., (2004)."Modeling wood gasification in a countercurrent fixed-bed reactor," AIChE Journal, vol. 50, pp. 2306-2319.
- [50] Thunman H., Niklasson F., Johnsson F., and Leckner B., (2001)."Composition of Volatile Gases and Thermochemical Properties of Wood for Modeling of Fixed or Fluidized Beds," Energy & Fuels, vol. 15, pp. 1488-1497.
- [51] Bryden K. M., "Computation Modeling of Wood Combustion," PhD, Mechanical Engineering, University of Wisconsin-Madison, Wisconsin, 1998.
- [52] Gronli M. G., "A theoretical and experimental study of the thermal degradation of biomass," Engineering Ph.D. Thesis, Norwegian University of Science and Technology, Norway, Trondheim, 1996.

- [53] Johansson R., Thunman H., and Leckner B., (2007)."Sensitivity analysis of a fixed bed combustion model," Energy and Fuels, vol. 21, pp. 1493-1503.
- [54] Hermansson S. and Thunman H., (2011)."CFD modelling of bed shrinkage and channeling in fixed-bed combustion," Combustion and Flame.
- [55] Shin D. and Choi S., (2000)."The combustion of simulated waste particles in a fixed bed," Combustion and Flame, vol. 121, pp. 167-180.
- [56] Fatehi M. and Kaviany M. (1994). "Adiabatic reverse combustion in a packed bed," Combustion and Flame, vol. 99, pp. 1-17.
- [57] Saastamoinen J. J., Horttanainen M., and Sarkomaa P., (2001)."Ignition wave propagation and release of volatiles in beds of wood particles," Combustion Science and Technology, vol. 165, pp. 41-60.
- [58] Bryden K. M. and Ragland K. W., (1996)."Numerical modeling of a deep, fixed bed combustor," Energy and Fuels, vol. 10, pp. 269-275.
- [59] Kær S. K., (2004)."Numerical modelling of a straw-fired grate boiler," Fuel, vol. 83, pp. 1183-1190.
- [60] Peters B., Schröder E., Bruch C., and Nussbaumer T. (2002). "Measurements and particle resolved modelling of heat-up and drying of a packed bed," Biomass and Bioenergy, vol. 23, pp. 291-306.
- [61] Peters B., (2002)."Measurements and application of a discrete particle model (DPM) to simulate combustion of a packed bed of individual fuel particles," Combustion and Flame, vol. 131, pp. 132-146.
- [62] Bruch C., Peters B., and Nussbaumer T. (2003). "Modelling wood combustion under fixed bed conditions," Fuel, vol. 82, pp. 729-738.
- [63] British Petroleum (B.P). Statistical Review of World Energy, (2010). [Online]. Available: www.bp.com/productlanding.do?categoryId=6929&contentId=7044622. https://th.images.search.yahoo.com.
- [64] Energy Information Administration (EIA). Independent Statistics and Analysis,
   (2010). [Online]. Available: http://www.eia.doe.gov/oiaf/1605/ggrpt/index.html.
- [65] A. Elsafty, L. Saeid. Sea Water Air Conditioning [SWAC] : A Cost Effective Alternative, International Journal of Engineering, (2003). (IJE). 3 (3) 346-358.
- [66] Combustion Fundamentals [Online]. Available : http://authors.library.caltech.edu/25069/4/AirPollution88-Ch2.pdf.
- [67] Biomass Energy. [Online]. Available : http://www.worldwidehelpers.org/wwhweb/uploads/files/Biomass%20as% 20a%20Solid%20Fuel.pdf.

- [68] Chemical composition of some common gaseous fuels. [Online]. Available : https://www.engineeringtoolbox.com/chemical-composition-gaseous-fuels-d\_1142.html
- [69] Office of the National Energy Policy Council Office of the Prime Minister, Direction for Thai Electricity Supply [ Online] . Available: http:// http://www2.dede.go.th/bhrd/old/Download/file\_handbook/Pre\_Heat/pre\_heat\_ 3.pdf,
- [70] ANSYS, I. (2017). ANSYS CFX-Solver Theory Guide [18.2].
- [71] Chitmongkol Pongsing "Efficiency Improvement of a Solid Fuel Combustor Using Porous Medium" Master of Engineering (Mechanical) Rajamangala University of Technology Thanyaburi Academic Year 2014.
- [72] Thawin Ponsen "Solid Fuel Porous Combustor With Cyclic Reversal Gas Flow" Master of Engineering (Mechanical) Rajamangala University of Technology Thanyaburi Academic Year 2014.
- [73] Mary Grace Aguinaldo Rubio Thesis "Small Scale Shaking Single-Stage Downdraft Biomass Gasifier" Master of Engineering (Mechanical and Energy Engineering) Graduate School, Kasetsart University Academic Year 2016
- [74] Charissa Ruthenget Thesis "CFD Simulation of Downdraft Gasification" Master of Engineering (Mechanical and Energy Engineering) Graduate School, Kasetsart University Academic Year 2019.





# **List of Publications**

# **International Energy Journal**

## 1. Buncha Puttakoon, Boonrit Prasartkaew and Kitipong Jaojaruek

"Improvement of Heat Transfer on Solid Fuel Combustor System Using Waste Steel Nuts as Porous Media" International Energy Journal September 18, 2020 www.rericjournal.ait.ac.th

## **International Conferences**

1. **Buncha Puttakoon, Boonrit Prasartkaew,** "Experimental study of Porous Medium Combustor Operating on Solid Fuel" Proceedings, The Pure and Applied Chemistry International Conference 2019 (PACCON 2019) TOGETHER FOR THE BENEFIT OF MANKIND, International Trade & Exhibition Centre (BITEC) Bangkok Thailand, February 7- 8, 2019, pp. RE153 - RE158.

2. **B. Puttakoon and B. Prasartkaew** " Development of Porous Medium Combustor Operating on Solid Fuel " The 14th Eco-Energy and Materials Science and Engineering Symposium (EMSES2018) Kyoto, Japan April 3rd – 6th, 2018. Old Paper ID ET1015-07-1-1 New Paper ID (Oral) ET13

## **National Conferences**

1. **Buncha Puttakoon and Boonrit Prasartkaew**, "Solid Fuel Porous Medium Combustor" Proceeding, The 8th Thailand Renewable Energy for Conference (TREC-8), Faculty of Engineering Rajamangala University of Technology Thanyaburi Thailand, 4 - 6 November 2015 pp. 342-346.

# **Biography**

Buncha Puttakoon

(RMUTT)

Name - Surname Date of Birth Address

## Education

21 October 1970 158/4 Moo 7, Tambon Don Pru District Si Prachan Suphan Buri 72140 2014 Doctor of Engineering Program in Energy and Materials Engineering (International Program), Faculty of Engineering, Rajamangala University of Technology Thanyaburi

2005 M.A.: Mechanical Education (Mechanical Engineering) from King Mongkut's Institute of Technology North Bangkok

1998 B.A.: Industrial Technology Mechanical Engineering from Rajabhat Institute Rajanakarindar University

1992 Diploma Auto mechanical from Siam University

1989 Vocational Level: Auto mechanical from Siam Institute Technology

2003 The present work Rajmangala University of Technology Suphanburi

2003 Section Manager Education of CNC Mold & Die Training Center

2001 Teacher of Auto mechanical Section of TPI Institute Technology (Teacher)

#### **Experience Work**

1996 Course of study of TPI Institute Technology (Teacher)

1996 Course of study of TPI Institute Technology (Teacher)

1994 Administration of TPI Institute Technology (Teacher)

1993 Automatic Department of Vocational Education Nakhornpathome

1992 Maintenance Mechanical Thai Petrochemical Industry Co., Ltd. (TPI): Leader Technician (Petrochemical Industrial)

1986 TOYOTA Center of Nokhonpathome Province (Technician)

1984 Head Office CPAC : Quality Control (QC)

Telephone Number Email Address 08-1493-3879 <u>Puttakoon@hotmail.com</u>, <u>buncha\_p@mail.rmutt.ac.th</u>